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TOWN OF MEDWAY
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting
May 16, 2016, 7:00 PM
Sanford Hall, Town Hall
155 Village Street
Agenda

7:00 PM

e Call to order; Recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance
e Public Comments

Other Business

Medway Town Hall
155 Village Street
Medway, MA 02053
Phone (508) 533-3264
Fax (508) 321-4988

1. Presentation — Fiscal Year 2015 Audit — Melanson & Heath

2. Approval — Submission for Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Funds

3. Approval — Contract with Clean Harbor for Household Hazardous Waste Disposal -$10,000

4. Presentation - Agricultural Committee

5. Approval — 2 Year Contract with All State Asphalt Inc., for Chip Sealing - $50,000

6. Review/Approval —June 9, 2016 Special Town Meeting Warrant

7. Approval — Host Community Agreement with COMMCAN, INC.

8. Execution of PILOT Agreement

9. Approval — Inter-municipal Agreement with Franklin For Its Use of Medway’s Council on Aging
Van

10. Approval — One-Day Liquor License Requests

a. Rebecca LeMarbre — Thayer Homestead — May 21, 2016
b. Jesse & Gary Krist- Thayer Homestead — May 28 & 29, 2016
11. Approval - CF Cycle for Life Ride — October 1, 2016
12. Action Items from Previous Meeting
13. Approval of Warrants
14. Town Administrator’s Report
15. Selectmen’s Reports

16. Executive Session, Exemption 6: To consider the purchase, exchange, taking, lease, or value of
real property if such discussion may have a detrimental effect on the negotiating position of the
governmental body [Review and possible release of Title Report for Property off of Milford, West,

The listed matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair to be discussed at the meeting. Not all items
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent

permitted by law.



and Alder Streets] & Exemption 3: To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or
litigation if an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the government’s bargaining or
litigating position; [Release of Executive Session Minutes from 8/31/2015]

For more information on agenda items, please visit the Board of Selectmen's page at
www.townofmedway.org
Upcoming Meetings, Agenda and Reminders

June 6, 2016 ---- Regular Meeting

The listed matters are those reasonably anticipated by the Chair to be discussed at the meeting. Not all items

may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent
permitted by law.



AGENDA
ITEM #1

Presentation — Fiscal Year 2015 Audit —
Melanson & Heath

Associated backup materials attached:
e FY2015 Audit Materials



MELANSON]

ACCOUNTANTS » AUDITORS B

10 New England Business
Center Dr. + Suite 107
Andover, MA 01810
(878)749-0005
melansonheath.com

December 23, 2015 Additional Offices:
Nashua, NH
Manchester, NH
Greenfield, MA
Ellsworth, ME

Michael Boynton
Town Administrator
Town of Medway
1565 Village Street

Medway, MA 02053

Dear Mr. Boynton:

Enclosed is the Town of Medway's governance letter. The purpose of the governance
letter is to inform those charged with governance about certain results of the annual

audit.
Please distribute the enclosed letter to all parties charged with the governance of the
Town. As always, we will be available to discuss the results of the audit or any other

applicable issues in more detail, at any time.

Sincerely,

Melonson Heath



MELANSON

ACCOUNTANTS + AUDITORS

10 New England Business
Center Dr. « Suite 107
Andover, MA 01810

. (978)749-0005
Michael Boynton melansonheath.com

Town Administrator

Town of Medway N

155 Village Street :dd:“’“:'HOfﬁ““
asnud,

Medway’ MA 02053 Manchester, NH

Greenfield, MA
Ellsworth, ME

Dear Mr. Boynton:

We have audited the financial statements of the Town of Medway, Massachusetis as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 and have issued our report thereon dated
December 23, 2015. Professional standards require that we advise you of the following
matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by profes-
sional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial state-
ments that have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly,
in all material respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or
management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our
audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes
consideration of internal contro! over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the
Town solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any
assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that
are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the
financial reporting process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the
purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

We have provided our findings regarding other matters noted during our auditin a
separate letter to you dated December 23, 2015.



Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously
communicated to you.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team and others in our Firm have complied with all relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. Safeguards that have been applied to eliminate
threats to independence or reduce them to an acceptable level include annual certifica-
tion by all Firm staff of independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Town is inciuded in the
notes to the financial statements. There have been no initiat selection of accounting
policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during the
year ended June 30, 2015. No matters have come to our attention that would require us,
under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for
significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in
controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by man-
agement and are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are
normally based on knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility
that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current
judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are:

+ Estimated lives and depreciation methods for depreciable assets.
¢ Collectability of receivables.
* Net OPEB obligation.

Management’s estimates of the above are based on various criteria. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that it is



reasonabile in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and in relation
to the applicable opinion units.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. We noted no partic-
ularly sensitive disclosures affecting the Town'’s financial statements.

Identified or Suspected Fraud

We have not identified or obtained information that indicates that fraud may have
occurred.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the
performance of the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate

all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that

we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected
misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable
opinion unit. We did not identify any uncorrected financial statement misstatements
whose effects in the current and prior periods, as determined by management, are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken

as a whole and each applicable opinion unit.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material,
corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a
result of our audit procedures. We did not identify any material misstatements that we
identified as a resuit of our audit procedures and that were brought to the attention of,
and corrected by, management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with manage-
ment as a matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be significant to the Town's
financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the
course of the audit. '



Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are
included in the letter dated December 23, 2015.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing
and accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were
no consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the Town, we generally discuss
a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing stand-
ards, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and
strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters dis-
cussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the Town’s auditors.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in
documents containing the Town'’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond
the financial information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform
any procedures to corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with
such standards, we have read the information (if applicable) and considered whether
such information, or the manner of its presentation, was materiaily inconsistent with the
presentation in the financial statements.

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is
a material misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe
that such information, or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the
information, or manner of its presentation, appearing in the financial statements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the governing body and
management of the Town of Medway and is not intended to be and should not be used

by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sincerely,

December 23, 2015



MELANSON

ACCOUNTAN'I:S + AUDITORS

December 23, 2015 10 Ne-w England Business

Center Dr. « Suite 107
Andover, MA 01810
{978)749-0005

]Mcl):\l':‘na iIdBoynt? nt melansorheath.com
ministrator
Town of Medway .
155 Vil!age Street Additional Offices:
Medway, Massachusetts 02053 ;ashua, NH
anchester, NH

Greenfield, MA
Ellsworth, ME

Dear Mr. Boynton,

During the course of our 2015 audit we identified certain areas where improvements
and/or efficiencies could be made that were not included in a formal management letter.
The following summarizes these issues very briefly:

Treasurer

- Old outstanding checks should be voided and removed from bank reconcilia-
tions and moved to a tailing liability at least annually. ,

Assessor

-  Old uncollectable receivables {some dating back to 1997) should be formally
abated.

Other

- Employee expense requests for reimbursement should be approved by
someone other than the individual making the request.

- Rate changes that are made to the payroll system should be reviewed by a
second individual to ensure all changes were made according to approved
personnel action form.

- Infiscal year 2016, there will be significant new single audit requirements
resulting from OB's Uniform Adminisfrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. We recommend that the District
prepare for the single audit changes by training staff, and implementing
formal written policies and procedures for the following:

Cash management
Allowable costs
Travel

Internal controls that comply with COSO's “Internal Control Integrated
Framework”

Procurement



e Subrecipients
¢ Property/equipment

We encourage the Town to implement these recommendations in order to improve

controls and efficiencies. | will be available to discuss these with you in more detail
at your convenience.

Sincerely,

Frank R. Biron, CPA
President
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MELANSON|gI3

ACCOUNTANTS « AUDITOR

10 New England Business
Center Dr. » Suite 107
Andover, MA 01810
{578)749-0005
melansonheath.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Additional Offices:
Nashua, NH

To the Board of Selectmen
Manchester, NH
Town of Medway, Massachusetts Greenfield, MA
Eltsworth, ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activi-
ties, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Medway, Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Town’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation

of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that



are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin-
ion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made

by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Medway, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budget-
ary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Regquired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Funding Progress,
the Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of
Contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited proce-
dures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing stand-
ards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inguiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with evidence suffi-
cient to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 23, 2015 on our consideration of the Town's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

2



regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 23, 2015



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Town of Medway, Massachusetts, we offer readers this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015.

A. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three com-
ponents: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements,
and (3) notes to financial statements. This report also contains other supplemen-
tary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial state-
ments are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of our finances in
a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the finan-
cial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. Ali changes in net position
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation
leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues {governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities include general government, public safety, educa-
tion, public works, health and human services, and culture and recreation. The
business-type activities include water, ambulance service, sewer, and solid
waste collection activities.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.



Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially
the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a gov-
ernment’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing deci-
sions. Both the governmentai fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
govemmental activities.

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate

compliance with this budget.
Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are maintained as follows:

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Specifically, enter-
prise funds are used to account for water, ambulance, sewer, and solid waste
collection operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-type
activities reported in the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information
for the water, ambulance, sewer and solid waste funds, which are considered

to be major funds.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the
benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in
the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the Town’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accom-
panying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary infor-



mation which is required to be disclosed by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the total of assets exceeded
liabilities by $98,005,750 (i.e., net position), a change of $(1,704,671)
in comparison to the prior year.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported com-
bined ending fund balances of $19,505,156, a change of $(911,433) in
comparison to the prior year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general
fund was $6,607,163, a change of $869,466 in comparison to the prior year.

Total long-term debt (i.e., bonds payable) at the close of the current fiscal
year was $40,847,023, a change of $3,269,458 in comparison to the prior
year.

. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of condensed government-wide financial data for the
current and prior fiscal years.

NET POSITION
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current and other assets $ 27707 $ 27348 $ 7786 $ 7478 $ 35493 § 34,826
Capital assets 115,150 111,072 35,690 34,910 150,840 145,982

Total assets 142,857 138,420 43,476 42,388 186,333 180,808
Long-term liabilities cutstanding 65,489 44 525 10,423 8,591 75012 53,116
Other liabilities 8,845 8,199 3,671 3,382 12,416 11,581

Total liabilities 74,334 52724 13,994 11,973 88,328 64,697
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 84,625 824972 25,435 26,119 110,060 109,091
Restricted 8,602 7,922 - - 8,602 7,922
Unrestricted (24,704} (5,198) 4,047 4,296 (20,657) (802)

Total net position

$ 68523 $ 85696 $ 29482 §$ 30415 $ 08,005 $ 116,111




CHANGES iN NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-Type
Aclivifies Activities Total
_ 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 2869 $ 2768 $ 5130 $ 5126 $ 7999 $§ 78%4
Operating grants and
contributions . 16,266 19,230 - - 16,266 19,230
Capital grants and
contributions 262 523 - - 262 523
General revenues:
Property taxes 31,524 31,350 - - 31,524 31,350
Excises 1,915 1,612 - - 1,915 1,612
Penalties and interest on
taxes 267 146 - - 267 146
Grants and contributions
not restricted to specific
programs 1,183 1,143 - - 1,183 1,143
Investment income 20 83 10 22 160 105
Other 401 155 41 5 442 160
Total revenues 54,777 57,010 5,181 5,163 59,958 62,163
Expenses:
General govemment 2,925 3,203 - - 2,925 3,203
Public safety 3,506 3,664 - - 3,508 3,664
Education 32,682 39,238 - - 32,682 39,238
Public works 2,992 2,726 - - 2,992 2,726
Human services 519 504 - - 519 504
Culture and recreation 5,055 1,005 - - 5,055 1,005
Employee benefis 6,840 6,005 - - 6,840 6,006
Interest on {ong-term debt 877 856 - - 877 956
Intergovernmental 705 728 - - 705 728
Water - - 2,153 1,963 2,153 1,963
Ambulance - - 591 670 591 670
Sewer operations - - 1,386 1,175 1,386 1,175
Solid waste - - 1,258 1,330 1,258 1,330
Total expenses 56,101 58,029 5,388 5,138 61,489 63,167
Change in net position
before transfers (1,324) {1,019) {207) 15 {1,531) {1,004)
Transfers in (out) 71 234 {2486) (249) {175) (15)
Change in net position {1,253) {785) (453) (234) {1,7086) (1,019)
Net position - beginning of year,
as restated 69,776 86,481 28,935 30,649 99,711 117,130
Net position - end of year $ 68523 § 85,696 $ 20482 $ 30415 $ 98,005 $ 116,111

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a gov-
ernment’s financial position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, total net
position was $98,005,750, a change of $(1,704,671) from the prior year.
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The largest portion of net position $110,059,623 reflects our investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. These capital
assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the investment in capital assets is
reported net of reiated debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of net position $8,602,353 represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance
of unrestricted net position reflects a deficit balance of $(20,656,226) caused
primarily by unfunded pension liability and post-employment benefits (see

Notes 20 and 21).

Governmental activities. Governmental activities for the year resulted in a
change in net position of $(1,252,382). Key elements of this change are as
follows:

General fund operations, as discussed further

in Section D $ (1,091,192)
Community preservation surplus - operating resuits 613,391
Nonmajor funds - accrual basis 4,495,429
Depreciation expense in excess of principal debt

service (717,316}
Change in other post employment benefits liability (2,934,815)
Change in net pension liability (768,503)
Other GAAP accruals (849,376)

Total $_(1,252,382)

Business-type activities. Business-type activities for the year resulted in a
change in net position of $(452,289). Key elements of this change are as follows:

Water operations $  (298,058)
Ambulance operations 52,523
Sewer operations (295,075)
Solid waste operations 88,321

Total $__ (452,289)

. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted eartier, fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.



Governmental funds. The focus of governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.

Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources availabie for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $19,505,156, a change of $(911,433) in comparison
to the prior year. Key elements of this change are as follows:

General fund operating results $ (1,091,192)
Community preservation 613,391
Nonmajor funds (433,632)

Total $ (911,433)

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $6,607,163 while total fund
balance was $10,728,059. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be
useful to compare both unassigned fund batance and total fund balance to total
general fund expenditures, Refer to the table below.

% of
Total General
General Fund 6/30/15 6/30/14 Change  Fund Expenditures
Unassigned fund balance $ 6,607,163 $ s57376097 § 869,466 14.3%
Total fund balance $ 10728058 § 11,818,251 § (1,091,192) 23.3%

The total fund balance of the general fund changed by $(1,091,192) during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this change are as follows:

Excess revenues over budget $ 1,053,711
Budgetary appropriation surplus 1,050,730
Shortfall of tax coliections over budget (163,509)

Shortfall of current year encumbered appropriations
to be spent in the subsequent year over prior year

encumbrances spent in the current year (5682,106)
Change in stabilization/fiscal stability (233,529)
Use of free cash (2,226,489)
Other timing issue 10,000

Total $_ (1,091,192)



Included in the total generai fund balance are the Town’s stabilization and fiscal
stability accounts with the following balances:

6/30/15 6/30/14 Change

General trust stabilization $ 1925866 $ 1,921,806 % 4,060
General operating stabilization 683,407 546,375 137,032
Stabilization storm reserve 212,389 211,646 743
Stabilization health insurance 52,699 52,515 184
Stabilization ESCO 125,298 173,341 (48,043)
Stabilization OPEB - 100,601 (100,601)
Stabilization capital improvements 340,905 589,591 (248,686)
Stabilization DPS facility 2,168 - 2,168
Fiscal stability 804,159 784,545 19,614

Total $ 4,146,801 $§ 4,380,420 §$ (233,529)

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information found
in the business-type activities reported in the government-wide financial state-
ments, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted
to $4,047,714, a change of $(248,572) in comparison to the prior year.

Other factors concerning the finances of proprietary funds have already been
addressed in the entity-wide discussion of business-type activities.

E. GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

There were no differences between the original budget and final amended budget.

F. CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. Total investment in capital assets for governmental and business-
type activities at year-end amounted to $150,840,419 (net of accumulated depre-
ciation), a change of $4,857,964 from the prior year. This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements, and machinery and
equipment.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

s $3,398,681 — New high school north/south fields
e $1,097,491 — DPW roads and sidewalks
s $1,061,860 — Village Street water mains

10



Additional information on capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt out-
standing was $40,847,023, all of which was backed by the full faith and credit
of the government.

Additional information on long-term debt can be found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of
Medway, MA's finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests
for additional financial information should be addressed to:
Office of Town Accountant
Town of Medway, Massachusetts
155 Village Street

Medway, Massachusetts 02053
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current;
Cash and short-term investments
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Property taxes
Excises
User fees
Departmental and other
Infergovernmental
Noncurrent;
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Property taxes
Capital Assets:
Land and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current:
Warrants payable
Accrued liabilities
Notes payable
Tax refunds payable
Other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable
Capital lease
Compensated absence
Noncurrent:
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Capital lease, net of current portion
Compensated absence, net of current portion
Accrued other post-employment benefits
Net pension liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Grants and other statutory restrictions
Permanent funds:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Governmenta! Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 24,629,015 $ 3968805 § 28597820
726,049 - 726,049
123,464 - 123,464

- 1,289,219 1,289,219

266,458 - 266,458
104,385 2,507,954 2,612,339
1,168,106 - 1,168,106
45,931,201 2,767,950 48,699,151
69,219,279 32,921,989 102,141,268
689,188 20,803 709,991
142,857,145 43,476,720 186,333,865
749,527 285,452 1,034,979
3,853,517 159,634 4,013,151
200,000 © 2,222,600 2,422,600
865,976 - 865,976
248,472 22,731 271,203
2,853,044 878,121 3,731,165
25,726 - 25,726
47,720 3,675 51,395
27,849,477 9,266,381 37,115,858
53,988 - 53,988
429,484 33,083 462,547
20,467,664 618,712 21,086,376
16,689,392 503,759 17,193,151
74,333,987 13,994,128 88,328,115
84,624,745 25,434,878 110,059,623
7,938,713 - 7.938,713
110,869 - 110,869
552,771 - 552,771
(24,703,940) 4,047,714 (20,656,226)
$ 68,523,158 $ 29482592 $ 098,005,750

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public works .
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Employee benefits
Interest
Intergovernmental

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Water services
Ambulance
Sewer
Solid waste

Totat Business-Type Activities
Totat

TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS

STATEMENT OF ACTIMITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Program Revenues Net nses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Cperating Capial Business-
Charges for Grants and Granis and Governmental Type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Aclivities Total
$ 2,924,059 $ 341125 $ 188,142 $ - $ (2,394,692) $ - $  (2,394,692)
3,505,683 257,743 48 383 - (3,199,557} - (3,199,557)
32,681,666 2,120,606 15,237,984 - {15,323,076) - (15,323,076)
2,991 489 10,316 228,768 262,042 (2,490,363) - (2,490,363)
518,566 60,164 99,691 -  (358,711) - (358,711)
5,055,260 78,899 462,421 - (4,513,940) - (4,513,940)
6,840,372 - - - (6,840,372) - (6,840,372)
877,392 ~ - - {877,352) - (877,382)
705,273 - - - {705,273) - (705,273}
56,100,660 2,868 853 16,266,389 262,042 {36,703,376) - (36,703,376)
2,152,615 2,024,138 - - - (128,477) (128,477)
591,078 544,010 - - - (47,068) (47,068)
1,385,170 1,411,077 - - - (275,093} {275,003)
1,257,520 1,450,783 - - - 193,263 193,263
5,387,383 5,130,008 - - - (257,375) (257,375)
$ 61,488,043 $ 7,998.861 $ 16,266,389 § 252042 {36,703,376) (257,375) (36,960,751)
General Revenues and Transfers:
Property taxes 31,524,368 - 31,624,368
Excises 1,015,289 - 1,915,289
Penalties, interest and other taxes 266,673 - 266,673
Grants and contributions not restricted
fo specific programs 1,182,599 - 1,182,599
Investment income 89,671 10,007 89,678
Miscellanecus 401,497 41,083 442 580
Transfers, net 70,897 (246,004) {175,107)
Total general revenues 35,450,994 {194,914) 35,256,080
. Change in Net Position {1,252,382) {452,289) {1,704,671)
Net Position:
Beginning of year, as restated 63,775 540 29,934,881 98,710,421
End of year $ 68,523,158 $ 29,482 592 $ 98,005,750

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2015
Nonmajor Total
Community Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and shor-term investments $ 15,422,159 $ 5,603,006 $ 3,603,850 $ 24,629,015
Receivables:

Property taxes 2,125,508 - - 2,125,506

Excises 220,389 - - 220,889

Departmental and other 1,875 7,198 258,148 267,221

Intergovernmental 24,000 - 80,385 104,385
TOTAL ASSETS $ 17,794 429 $ 5,610,204 $ 3,942383 $ 27,347,016
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable $ 380,049 $ 2,738 $ 366739 $ 749,527

Accrued liabilities 3,513,797 - 125,305 3,639,102

Notes payable - - 200,000 200,000

Tax refunds payable 865,976 - - 865,976

Other liabilities 231,410 - 17,062 248 472
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,991,232 2,739 708,106 5,703,077
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,075,138 7,198 56,446 2,138,783
FUND BALANCES

Nonspendabie - - 110,869 110,869

Restricted - 5,600,266 3,740,775 9,341,041

Committed 2,208,770 - - 2,208,770

Assigned 1,912,126 - - 1,912,126

Unassigned 6,607,163 - (674,813) 5,832,350
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 10,728,059 5,600,266 3,176,831 19,505,156
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 17,794,429 $ 5,610,204 $ 3,942,383 $ 27,347,016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCES TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Total governmental fund balances $

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting
and are not deferred until coliection.

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt, whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported
in the governmental funds.

Certain changes in the net pension liability, which are deferred to
future reporting periods, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Net position of governmental activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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19,505,156
115,150,480

1,809,244
(214,415)

(51,727,103)

(16,000,204)

68,523,158



TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues:
Property taxes
Excises
Penalties, interest and other taxes
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public works
Heatth and human services
Culture and recreation
Employee benefits
Debt service
Intergovernmental

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Bond proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses

Fund Equity, at Beginning of Year
Fund Equity, at End of Year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20156

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Nonmajor Total
Community Govemmentat Governmental

General Preservation Funds Funds
$ 30733415 § 643,931 $ - $ 31,377,346
1,863,482 - - 1,863,482
266,673 - - 266,673
- - 2,494,724 2,494,724
11,405,501 345,993 2,647,265 14,398,759
476,377 - - 476,377
19,589 - - 19,589
76,168 10,644 2,860 89,672
130,705 - 538,573 669,278
44,971,810 1,000,568 5,683,422 51,655,900
2,776,579 - 316,928 3,083,507
3,428,417 - 307,354 3,735,771
25,526,545 - 5,005,519 30,532,064
3,101,378 - 506,771 3,608,149
363,362 - 166,601 519,963
778,918 139,639 4,374,237 5,292,794
6,209,785 - . 6,208,785
3,219,742 208,238 10,494 3,438,474
705,273 - - 705,273
46,109,299 347,877 10,677,904 57,135,780
(1,138,089) 652,691 (4,994,482) (5,479,880)
- - 4,497 550 4,497 550
584,297 - 63,300 647,587
(537,400) {39,300) - (576,700)
46,897 (39,300) 4,560,850 4,568 447
(1,091,192) 613,391 (433,632) {911,433)
11,819,251 4,986,875 3,610,463 20,416,589
$ 10,728,059 $ 5,600,266 $ 3,176,831 $ 18,505,156




TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $  (911,433)

* Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:

Capital outlay purchases 7,380,511
Depreciation (3,287,810
Loss on disposition of assets (14,350)

* Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide curmrent
financiat resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the
recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, etfc.)
differ between the two statements. This amount represents the
net change in deferred revenue. 204,100

* The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net position:

Repayments of debt 2,570,494
{ssuance of new debt (4,497,550}
Repayment of capital lease 24,917

* In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt, whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due. (16,000)

* Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as
compensated absences and other post-employment benefits, do
not require the use of current financial resources and therefore,

are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (2,625,846)

« Certain changes in the net pension liability, which are deferred to
future reporting periods, are not repored in the governmental funds. {79,315)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ !1,252,382)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND OQTHER SOURCES, AND EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues and Other Sources:
Taxes
Excises
Penalties, interest and other taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits
investment income
Miscellaneous
Transfer in
Use of free cash

Total Revenues and Other Sources

Expenditures and Other Uses:
General government
Public safety
Education
Public works
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Intergovernmental
Employee benefits
Transfers out
Tax title

Total Expenditures and Other Uses

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Excess {deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and otheruses

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Actuai Positive
Budget Budget Amounts {Negative}
30,896,924 $ 30,896,924 $ 30,896,924 $ -
1,474,444 1,474,444 1,863,482 389,038
109,000 109,000 266,673 157,673
14,306,030 11,306,030 41,405,501 99,471
290,000 290,000 476,377 186,377
15,000 15,000 19,589 4,589
43,000 43,000 66,314 23,314
13,000 13,000 130,705 117,705
628,786 628,786 704,330 75,544
2,226,489 2,226,489 2,226,489 -
47,002,673 47,002,673 48,056,384 1,053,711
3,074,762 3,074,762 2,875,926 198,836
3,433,508 3,433,508 3,339,779 93,729
25,480,634 25,480,634 25,470,578 10,056
2,636,762 2,636,762 2,683,320 53.442
374,036 374,036 357,576 16,460
177,694 777,694 767,806 9,888
3,454,101 3,454,101 3,263,797 490,304
701,122 701,122 705,273 4,151)
6,690,059 6,690,059 6,207,893 482,166
369,995 369,995 369,995 -
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
47,002,673 47,002,673 45,951,943 1,050,730
- $ - $ 2104441 $ 2,104,441

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of these financial statements.
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ASSETS

Current;
Cash and short-term invesiments
User fees, net of allowance for uncollectibles
Intergovernmental

Total current assets

Noncurrent:
Capitel assets
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation

Total nencurrent assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Current:

Warrants payable

Accrued fiabilities

Notes payable

Cther liabllities

Current portion of long-term liabilities:
Bonds payable
Compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent:
Bonds payable, net of current portion

Compensated absences, net of current portion

Accrued other post-employment benefits
Net pension liability

Tota! noncurrent liabilites
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital asssts
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Fund
Water Ambutance Sewer Solid Waste

Fund Furd Fund Fund Total
$ 1,184,004 $ 354499 § 1220917 $ 1,489,395 $ 3,968,805
233,058 66,321 770,77 219,069 1,289,219
2,507 954 - - - 2,507,954
3,926,006 420,820 2,000,688 1,418,464 7,765,978
2,512,983 - 254 967 - 2,767,950
20,435,664 200,112 12,286,213 - 32,921,989
22048847 200112 12,541,180 - 35,689,939
7,384 4,260 3,550 5,609 20,803
26,882,037 625,192 14,545,418 1,424,073 43,476,720
212,162 8,228 56,482 8,580 285,452
93,208 23,870 28,492 12,874 159,634
2,222,600 - - - 2,222 600
17,323 - 5,408 - 2,713
652,121 30,000 196,000 - 878,121
2,851 350 - 474 3,675
3,200,355 62,448 287,382 22,028 3,672,213
6,896,381 90,000 2,281,000 - 6,268,381
25,655 3,145 - 4,263 33,063
220,122 126,533 104,513 167,544 618,712
178,808 103,159 85,066 135,825 503,759
7,319,867 322837 2471479 307,632 10,421,915
10,520,322 385,285 2,758,861 329,660 13,994,128
14,916,032 80,112 10,438,734 - 25,434,878
1,445,683 159,795 1,347,823 1,094,413 4,047,714
$ 16,361,715 $ 239,907 $ 11,786,557 $ 1,094.413 $ 29482592
o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Fund
Water Ambulance Sewer Solid Waste
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Cperating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 2024138 $ 544010 § 1411077 § 1,450,783 § 5,130,008
Other 40,726 - 34 323 41,083
Total Operating Revenues 2,064,864 544,010 1,411,411 1,451,106 5,171,091
Operating Expenses:
Operaling expenses 1,224,831 553,906 957 546 1,257,520 3,993,803
Depreciation 722,935 32,072 352,115 - 1,107,122
Total Operating Expenses 1,947,766 585,978 1,309,661 1,257,520 5,100,925
Operating Income {Loss} 117,098 (41,968) (198,550) 193,586 70,166
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income - - 10,007 - 10,007
interest expense {204,849) {5,100) (76,509) - (286,458}
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net {204,849) (5,100) (66,502} - {276,451}
Income (Loss) Before Transfers (87.751) {47,068} (265,052} 193,586 {206,285}
Transfers:
Transfers in - 176,381 44,055 - 220,436
Transfers out {210,307} (76,790) (74,078) {105,265) (466,440)
Change in Net Position (298,058) 52,523 (295,075) 88,321 (452,289)
Net Position at Beginning of Year, as restated 16,659,773 187,384 12,081,632 1,006,092 28,934 881
Net Position at End of Year $ 16,361,715 $ 230007 $ 11786557 $ 1,094413 § 20482502
E———— e m—————— T ————

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Recelpﬁs from cutomers and usars
Payments to vendors and employees

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flaws From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net Cash Provided By (Used For} Nencapital Financing Activities

Aoqulsihun and oonstruahon of caprtai assets
Principal payments on bonds and notes
Preceeds of notes payabie

interest expense

Nat Cash (Used For) Capital and Related
Financing Aclivities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Investment income

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Short-Term Investments
Cash and Short-Term Investments, Beginning of Year
Cash and Shott-Term investments, End of Year

i 1o Net Cash
P i H
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by {used for} operaling activities:
Depreciation
Changes In assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Due from other governments
Other assels
Warrants and accounts payable
Other liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Net pension kability

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

The accompanying noles are an integral pan of these financial statements.
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Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds
Water AmbtHance Sewer Solid Waste

Fund Eund Fund Eund TJotal
$ 1,622200 § 556773 0§ 1,189,636 0§ 1,463,824 $ 4,732523
(884,135} {555,450} {910,781) (1,242,664} {3,703,030)
528,155 1,323 278,855 224,160 1,026,493
- 176,381 44,055 - 220,436
{210,307) {76,790} {74,078} (105,265) (466 440)
{210,307) 99,591 {30,023) (105,265) (246,004)
{1,828,898) - (67,837) - (1,886,736)
(38,502) (30,000} (75,000} - {143,502}
1,242,502 - 130,000 - 1,372,502
(204,849} {5,100} (76,608} - (286,557)
{829,748) {35,100} (79,445) - {944,203)
- - 10,008 - 10,008
- 10,008 - 10,008
{511,900) 65,814 179,395 115,895 (150,796)
1,696,894 268,685 1,060,522 1,083,500 4,119,601
$§ 1,184,984 $ 354480 $ 1220917 0§ 1,199305 § 3,068,805

AT

§ 117,098 $ (41,968 § (198550} § 103586 § 70,166
722,935 32,072 352,115 - 1,107,122
48,218 12,763 78,527 12,718 152,286
{590,852) - . - (590,852}
{7,384) (4,260) (3,550} {5,609) {20,803}
172,872 (27,493) 28,043 {8,508) 163,824
47,038 16,875 14,984 24,561 103,569
9,835 8,484 3327 {752) 20,884
8,234 4,750 3,959 6,254 23,197

§ 528,155 $ 1,323 § 278855 § 221160 § 1029453




TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and short-term investments
Receivable
Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Accounts payable
Escrow deposits
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Total net position held in trust

JUNE 30, 2015

Private Other
Purpose Post-Employment
Trust Benefits Trust Agency
Funds Fund Funds
$ 918469 $ 250,887 § 556,728
- - 33,258
- - 20,000
918,469 250,887 609,986
2,158 - 33,785
- - 545,489
- - 30,712
2,168 - 609,986
$ 916,311 $ 250,887 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integraf part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Other
Private Post-Employment
Purpose Benefits Trust
Trust Funds Fund
Additions:
Investment income $ 5,310 $ 236
Miscellaneous 69,375 -
Transfers in - 250,651
Total additions 74,685 250,887
Deductions:
Education 62,239 -
Total deductions 62,238 -
Net increase 12,446 250,887
Net position:
Beginning of year 903,865 -
End of year $ 916,311 $ 250,887

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Town of Medway, MA (the Town) conform to
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to govern-
mental units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A. Reporting Enlit

The Town is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Board of
Selectman. As required by generally accepted accounting principles,
these financial statements present the government and applicable com-
ponent units for which the government is considered to be financially
accountable. In fiscal year 2015, it was determined that no entities met
the required GASB 14 (as amended) criteria of component units.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part,

the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and inter-
governmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activ-
ities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific func-
tion or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and con-
tributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital require-
ments of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmenta! funds, propri-
etary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from
the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

24



C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement

Presentation

Govemment-wide Financial Statemenis

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the eco-
nomic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,
as is the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Reve-
nues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liabil-
ity is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
{axes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligi-
bility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. As a general
rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemn-
ment-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers
or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, (2) operating
grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, includ-
ing special assessments. Intemally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes and excises.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measur-
able and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers
property tax revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are consid-
ered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expendi-
tures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

« The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund.
It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

s The community preservation fund accounts for funds used for
the acquisition, creation, and preservation of open space, historic
resources, and community housing.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generaily result from
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providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

o Water operations

+ Ambulance services

s Sewer operations

» Solid waste collection fund

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements,
other than those properly reported in the pension trust fund or permanent
fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

The agency funds account for fiduciary assets held by the Town in a
custodial capacity as an agent on behalf of others. Agency funds report
only assets and liabilities, and therefore, have no measurement focus.

The other post-employment benefits trust fund is used to account for
assets that are dedicated to providing benefits to retirees. These funds
reduce the unfunded actuarial liability of healthcare and other post-
employment benefits. Contributions to this fund are irrevocable.

. Cash and Short-Term Investments

Cash balances from all funds, except those required to be segregated

by law, are combined to form a consolidation of cash. Cash balances are
invested {o the extent available, and interest earnings are recognized in
the general fund. Certain special revenue, proprietary, and fiduciary funds
segregate cash, and investment earnings become a part of those funds.

Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits,
certificates of deposits, and savings accounts. A cash and investment pool
is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s portion of
this pool is reflected on the combined financial statements under the cap-
tion “cash and short-term investments”. The interest earnings attributable
to each fund type are included under investment income.

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be short-
term investments.
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E. Properly Tax Limitations

Legislation known as “Proposition 2'2" has limited the amount of revenue
that can be derived from property taxes. The prior fiscal year's tax levy
limit is used as a base and cannot increase by more than 2.5 percent
(excluding new growth), unless an override is voted. The actual fiscal
year 2015 tax levy reflected an excess capacity of $789,354.

F. Capital Assels

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastruc-
ture assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $10,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at esti-
mated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materiaily extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as pro-
jects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of
capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capital-
ized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 40
Building improvements 20
Roads and improvements 20
Infrastructure 30-75
Vehicles 5
Office equipment 5
Computer equipment 5

G. Compensated Absences

It is the Town’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but
unused vacation and sick pay benefits. All vested sick and vacation pay is
accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in gov-
ernmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.
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H. Long-Term Qbligations

I

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt, and other long-term obliga-
tions are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position.

Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified
as “fund balance”. Fund equity for all other reporting is classified as “net
position”.

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference
between the current assets and current liabilities. The Town reserves
those portions of fund balance that are legally segregated for a specific
future use or which do not represent available, spendable resources
and therefore, are not available for appropriation or expenditure.
Unassigned fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance that

is available for appropriation in future periods.

The Town's fund balance classification policies and procedures are as
follows:

1) Nonspendable funds are either unspendable in the current form
(i.e., inventory or prepaid items) or can never be spent (i.e., per-
petual care).

2) Restricted funds are used solely for the purpose in which the fund
was established. In the case of special revenue funds, these funds
are created by statute or otherwise have external constraints on
how the funds can be expended.

3) Commmitted funds are reported and expended as a result of motions
passed by the highest decision making authority in the government
(i.e., Town Meeting).

4} Assigned funds are used for specific purposes as established by
management. These funds, which include encumbrances, have
been assigned for specific goods and services ordered but not yet
paid for. This account also includes fund balance (free cash) voted
{o be used in the subsequent fiscal year.

5) Unassigned funds are available to be spent in future periods.

When an expenditure is incurred that would qualify for payment from multi-
ple fund balance types, the Town uses the following order to liquidate
liabilities: restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.
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Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets/
deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows. Net investment in capital
assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through

the enabling legisiation adopted by the Town or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.
The remaining net position is reported as unrestricted.

J. Use of Eslimales

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures for contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic
financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary
from estimates that were used.

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

At the annual town mesting, the Finance Committee presents an operating
and capital budget for the proposed expenditures of the fiscal year com-
mencing the following July 1. The budget, as enacted by town meeting,
establishes the legal leve! of control and specifies that certain appropri-
ations are to be funded by particular revenues. The original budget is
amended during the fiscal year at special town meetings as required by
changing conditions. In cases of extraordinary or unforeseen expenses, the
Finance Committee is empowered to transfer funds from the Reserve Fund
(a contingency appropriation) to a departmental appropriation. “Extraordi-
nary” includes expenses which are not in the usual line, or are great or
exceptional. “Unforeseen” includes expenses which are not foreseen as

of the time of the annual meeting when appropriations are voted.

Departments are limited to the line items as voted. Certain items may
exceed the line item budget as approved if it is for an emergency and for
the safety of the general public. These items are limited by the Massa-
chusetts General Laws and must be raised in the next year’s tax rate.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control
device during the year for the General Fund and Proprietary Funds.
Effective budgetary control is achieved for all other funds through
provisions of the Massachusetts General Laws.
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At year-end, appropriation balances lapse, except for certain unexpended
capital items and encumbrances which will be honored during the subse-
quent year.

. Budgetary Basis

The general fund final appropriation appearing on the “Budget and Actual”
page of the fund financial statements represents the final amended budget
after all reserve fund transfers and supplemental appropriations.

. Budgel/GAAP Reconciliation

The budgetary data for the general and proprietary funds is based upon
accounting principles that differ from generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). Therefore, in addition to the GAAP basis financial
statements, the results of operations of the general fund are presented in
accordance with budgetary accounting principles to provide a meaningful
comparison to budgetary data.

The following is a summary of adjustments made to the actual revenues
and other sources, and expenditures and other uses, to conform to the
budgetary basis of accounting.

Revenues Expenditures
and Other and Other
General Fund Financing Sources  Financing Uses
Revenues/Expenditures
(GAAP basis) $ 44,971,910 $ 46,109,999
Other financing sources/uses
(GAAP basis) 584,297 537,400
Subtotal {(GAAP Basis) 45,556,207 46,647,399
Adjust tax revenue to accrual basis 163,509 -
Reverse beginning of year appropriation
carryforwards from expenditures - (1,384,293)
Add end-of-year appropriation
carryforwards from expenditures - 802,187
To record use of free cash 2,226,489 -
To remove stabilization fund . 110,179 (123,350)
Other timing issue - 10,000
Budgetary basis $ 48,056,384 $ 45,951,943
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D. Deficit Fund Equity
The following funds had deficits as of June 30, 2015:

Chapter 90 $ (366,191)
McGovern windows (130,518)
Rt 109 earmark {60,565)
94-142 (33,099)
State 911 support incentive grant {30,033)
Brentwood drainage (25,059)
MADEP water audit (10,763)
Title | (7,701)
Insurance (4,255)
SPED program improvement (4,068)
Title Il Teacher Quality (1,300)
COA transportation revolving (1,054}
Zoning review fees (207)

$ (674,813)

The Town’s special revenue and capital project funds reflect various
individual deficit fund balance accounts which will be funded by future
departmental revenues, bond proceeds, and transfers from other funds.

Cash and Short-Term Investments

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure
of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not
be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in

the possession of another party.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in

the event of a bank failure, the Town'’s deposits may not be returned.
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44, Section 55, limits the Town’s
deposits “in a bank or trust company or banking company to an amount
not exceeding sixty percent of the capital and surplus of such bank or trust
company or banking company, unless satisfactory security is given to it by
such bank or trust company or banking company for such excess.” The
Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

The Town did not have any bank balances that were exposed to custodial

credit risk as uninsured, uncollateralized, and collateral held by pledging
bank’s trust department not in the Town's name.
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Taxes Receivable

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values
assessed on January 1 of every year. Assessed values are established by
the Board of Assessor's for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on a quarterly basis and are subject to penalties and interest if they
are not paid by the respective due date. Real estate and personal property
taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they relate to.

Fourteen days after the due date for the final tax bill for real estate taxes, a
demand notice may be sent to the delinguent taxpayer. Fourteen days after
the demand notice has been sent, the tax collector may proceed to file a lien
against the delinquent taxpayers’ property. The Town has an ultimate right to
foreclose on property for unpaid taxes. Personal property taxes cannot be
secured through the lien process.

Taxes receivable at June 30, 2015 consist of the following (in thousands):

Real Estate
2015 $ 293
2014 43
2013 21
2012 1
Prior (10)
348
Personal Property
2015 387
2014 2
2013 1
2012 2
2011 2
Prior 9
403
Tax Liens 1,298
Deferred Taxes 76
Total $ 2125

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The receivables reported in the accompanying entity-wide financial state-
ments reflect the following estimated allowances for doubtful accounts (in
thousands):
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(Governmental Business-Type

Property taxes $ 231 $ -
Excises $ 97 $ -
Utilities $ - $ 307
Other $ - $ 13

Intergovernmental Receivables

This balance represents reimbursements requested from Federal and State
agencies for expenditures incurred in fiscal 2015.

Interfund Fund Transfers

Transfers between Governmental and Business-Type Activities do not off-
set by $(175,107). This is due to transfers between the Agency and Other
Post-Employment Benefits Trust funds and Governmental funds.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows (in
thousands):
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements $ 84675 § 4493 § - $ 89,168
Machinery, equipment, and furnishings 10,3569 812 (49) 11,122
Infrastructure 28,967 1,512 - 30,479
Total capital assets, being depreciated 124,001 6,817 {49} 136,769
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (29,040) {2,005) - {31,045)
Machinery, equipment, and furnishings (7,443) (582) 35 {8,000}
Infrastructure (21,815) {690) - {22,505}
Total accumulated depreciation (58,298) (3,287} 35 (61,550)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 65,703 3,530 {14} 69,219
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 21,228 - - 21,228
Construction in progress 24,141 562 - 24,703
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 45,369 562 - 45,931

Govemmental activities capital assets, net $ 111072 § 4002 § 514! $ 115,150
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements $ 14 $ - $ - $ 14
Machinery, equipment, and furnishings 2,227 157 - 2,384
Infrastructure 54,617 - - 54,617
Total capital assets, being depreciated 56,858 157 - 57,015
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings and improvements (14) - - {(14)
Machinery, equipment, and furnishings (982) {131) - (1,113)
Infrastructure (21,990) {876) - (22,966)
Total accumulated depreciation (22,986) {1,107} - (24,093)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 33,872 {950} . 32,922
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land 615 - - 615
Construction in progress 423 1,730 - 2,153
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,038 1,730 - 2,768
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 34910 § 780 $ - $ 35690

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Town as follows (in
thousands):

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 123
Public safety 209
Education 1,840
Public works 930
Culture and recreation 95
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3287

Business-Type Activities:

Water $ 723
Ambulance : 32
Sewer 352
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 15107



Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of net assets by
the Town that is applicable to future reporting pericds. Deferred outflows of
resources have a positive effect on net position, similar to assets.

The following is a summary of deferred outflow of resources balances as of
June 30, 2015:

Entity-wide Basis
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Net difference between projected and
actual pension investment earnings $ 689,188 $ 20,803

Warrants Payable
Warrants payable represent 2015 expenditures paid by July 15, 2015.

Anficipation Notes Payable
The Town had the following notes outstanding at June 30, 2015:

interest Date of Date of Balance at

Rate Issue Maturity 6/30/15
MWPAT CW11-20 0.15% 04/15M12 04/15/16 $§ 500,000
MWPAT T5 97-1086-C 0.00% 1211212 12112/15 200,000
MWPAT DW-13-13A 0.10% 05/01/15 05/01/16 1,722,600
Total $ 2422600

The following summarizes activity in notes payable during fiscal year 2015:

Balance Balance
Beginning New End of
of Year Issues Maturities Year
MWPAT CW11-20 $ 500,000 § - $ - $ 500,000
MWPAT T5 97-1086-C 200,000 - - 200,000
Tanker truck 270,000 - (270,000) -
Sewer 75,000 - {75,000) -
MWPAT DW-13-13 1,501,102 - (1,501,102) -
Water mains and tank mixer 260,000 - (260,000) -
MWPAT DW-13-13A - 1,722,600 - 1,722,600
Total $ 2,806,102 $ 1,722,600 $ (2,106,102) $ 2,422,600
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12. Capital Lease Obligations

The Town is the lessee of certain equipment under a capital lease expiring in
2018. Future minimum lease payments under the capital lease consisted of
the following as of June 30, 2015:

Fiscal Capital
Year Leases
2018 $ 28317
2017 28,317
2018 28,317
Total minimum lease payments 84,951
Less amounts representing interest 5,237

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 79714

13. Long-Term Debt
A. General Obligation Bonds

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisi-
tion and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds
have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities.
General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Amount
Serial Qutstanding
Maturities Interest as of
Govemnmental Activities: Through Rate{s)% 6/30/15

MWPAT (Title V Septic Mgmt.) 08/01/18 0.00% $ 26,620
Multipurpose 03/01/16 4.28% 155,000
Multipurpose 04/15/22 3.73% 1,200,000
MWPAT (Title V Septic Mgmt.} 08/01/23 0.00% 33,351
Multipurpose 11115/25 4.00% 6,595,000
Multipurpose 10/15/29 2.92% 485,000
FY2011 refunding 06/15/16 1.29% 120,000
Surface refunding 08/15/23 2.54% 90,000
Town hall remodeling 08/15/20 2.28% 90,000
Energy conservation 08/15/29 3.00% 2,980,000
Public way 08/15/15 2.07% 120,000
Police communication 08/15/15 2.07% 55,000
Architectural services 08/15/15 2.07% 50,000
General obligation 02/15/32 2.02% 4,255,000
General obligation 09/15/32 1.88% 4,320,000
Multipurpose 05/15/33 2.22% 5,620,000
General obligation 03/15/16 3.00% 4,497,550
Total Governmental Activities: $ 30,702,521
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Business-Type Activities:
Water corrosion control
Water well
Water well
Water equipment
Meters
Water storage tank
Well
Water meters
Water
General obligation
MWPAT DW13-13
Sewer projects
Sewer projects
Sewer projects
General obligation
Sewer projects
General obligation

Serial
Maturities
Through
03/01/16
10/15/29
10/15/29
10M15/47
10/16/19
08/15/29
08/15/29
08/15/15
02/15/32
03/15/16
07/15/35
0472117
10/15/29
08/15/29
09/15/32
03/15/16
02115132

Total Business-Type Activities:

B. Future Debt Service

Interest

Rate(s) %
4.28%
3.18%
3.15%
2.18%
2.45%
2.99%
2.97%
2.01%
2.02%
3.00%
2.00%
5.00%
3.17%
3.01%
1.98%
3.00%
2.02%

Amount
Cutstanding
as of
6/30/115

60,000
1,280,000
405,000
75,000
525,000
580,000
430,000
10,000
2,360,000
301,400
1,501,102
12,000
1,240,000
750,000
160,000
315,000

120,000
10,144,502

The annual payments to retire all general obligation long-term debt
outstanding as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Governmental

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021 - 2025
2026 - 2030
2031 -2033

Total

Business-Type
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2021 - 2025
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2033

Total

Principal Interest Total
$ 2853044 $ 892808 $ 3,7453852
2,335,494 803,158 3,138,652
2,320,494 733,985 3,054,479
2,305,494 659,047 2,964,541
2,203,599 584,278 2,787,877
10,074,396 1,953,437 12,027,833
6,580,000 745,053 7,325,053
2,030,000 100,300 2,130,300
$ 30,702521 $ 6472066 $ 37,174,587
Principal Interest Total
$ 878121 $ 283974 $ 1,162,005
803,041 267,751 1,070,792
783,389 245,518 1,028,907
754,767 222,050 976,817
721174 197,329 918,503
2,943,081 710,062 3,653,143
2,563,154 294,718 2,857,872
697,775 37,043 734,818
$ 10,144,502 $ 2,258,445 § 12,402,947
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C. Changes in General Long-Term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the following changes occurred in
long-term liabilities {in thousands):

Equals
Total Total Less Long-Term
Balance Balance Current Portion
114 Additions Reductions  6/30/15 Porticn 6/30/15
Governmental Activities
Bonds payable $ 28775 $ 4498 $§ (2,570) $ 30,703 § (2.853) $ 27,850
Other:
Capital lease 106 - (25) 80 {26) 54
Compensated absences 786 - (309) 477 (48) 429
Accrued other post-
employment benefits 17,533 2,934 - 20,467 - 20,467
Net pension liability 15,921 768 - 16,689 - 16,689
Totals $ 63120 $ 8200 $ (2904) $ 68416 § (2,927) $ 65489
Equals
Total Total Less Long-Term
Balance Balance Current Portion
71114 Additions Reductions  6/30/15 Portion 6/30/15
Business-Type Activities
Bonds payable $ 8802 $ 2118 $ (775 $ 10145 $ (878) § 9,267
Other:
Compensated absenhces 39 - {2) 37 4) 33
Accrued other post-
employment benefits 529 90 - 619 - 619
Net pension liability 481 23 - 504 - 504
Totals $ 9851 $ 2231 §_(777) $_ 11,305 $_ (882) $ 10,423

14. Subsequent Events
Debt
Subsequent to June 30, 2015, the Town has incurred the following additional
debt:
Interest Issue Maturity
Amount Rate Date Date
Bond anticipation note $ 2,654,348 1.25% 09/22115  09/M15/16
156. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources are the acquisition of net assets by the Town
that are applicable to future reporting periods. Deferred inflows of resources
have a negative effect on net position, similar to liabilities.
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16.

17.

The following is a summary of deferred inflow of resources balances as of

June 30, 2015:
Fund Basis

Governmental Funds
Community
General Fund Preservation Nonmajor

Unavailabie revenues $ 2075138 $ 7199 $ 56,446

Restricted Net Position

The accompanying entity-wide financial statements report restricted net
position when external constraints from grantors or contributors are placed
on net position.

Permanent fund restricted net position is segregated between nonexpendable
and expendable. The nonexpendable portion represents the original restricted
principal contribution, and the expendable represents accumulated eamings
which are available to be spent based on donor restrictions.

Governmental Funds ~ Balances

Fund balances are segregated to account for resources that are either not
available for expenditure in the future or are legally set aside for a specific
future use.

The Town implemented GASB Statement No. 54 (GASB 54), Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which enhances the
usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance
classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying existing
governmental fund type definitions.

The following types of fund balances are reported at June 30, 2015:

Nonspendable - Represents amounts that cannot be spent because they

are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to
be maintained intact. This fund balance classification includes general fund
reserves for prepaid expenditures and nonmajor governmental fund reserves
for the principal portion of permanent trust funds.

Restricted - Represents amounts that are restricted to specific purposes by
constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. This fund balance classification inciudes
general fund encumbrances funded by bond issuances, various special
revenue funds, and the income portion of permanent trust funds.
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Committed - Represents amounts that can only be used for specific pur-
poses pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Town’s highest
level of decision-making authority. This fund balance classification includes
special article appropriations approved at Town Meeting and various special
revenue funds.

Assigned - Represents amounts that are constrained by the Town'’s intent to
use these resources for a specific purpose. This fund balance classification
includes general fund encumbrances that have been established by various
Town departments for the expenditure of current year budgetary financial
resources upon vendor performance in the subsequent budgetary period.

Unassigned - Represents amounts that are available to be spent in future
periods.

Following is a breakdown of the Town's fund balances at June 30, 2015:

Nonmajor Total
General Community Governmental Governmental
Fund Preservation Funds Funds
Nonspendable
Nonexpendable permanent funds $ - $ - $ 110869 § 110,869
Total Nonspendable - - 110,869 110,869
Restricted
Bonded capital projects - - 332,363 332,363
Special revenue funds - 5,600,266 2,750,028 8,350,294
Expendable permanent funds - - 658,384 658,384
Total Restricted - 5,600,266 3,740,775 9,341,041
Committed
Reserve for continuing appropriations
General government 315,424 - - 315,424
Education 72,622 - - 72,622
Public works 209,979 - - 209,979
Culture and recreation 73,127 - - 73,127
Stabilization storm reserve 212,389 - - 212,389
Stabilization health insurance 52,699 - - 52,699
Stabilization ESCO 125,208 - - 125,208
Stabilization capital improvements 340,905 - - 340,905
Stabilization DPS facility 2,168 - - 2,168
Fiscal stability 804,159 - - 804,159
Total Committed 2,208,770 - - 2,208,770
Assigned
Encumbrances
General government 20,492 - - 20,492
Public safety 18,654 - - 18,654
Education 84,429 - - 84,429
Public works 2,721 - - 2,721
Culture and recreation 6,632 - - 6,632
Employee benefits 1,892 1,892
Reserve for excluded debt 434,698 - - 434,698
Reserve for debt service 677,608 - - 677,608
Reserved for expenditures §65,000 - - 665,000
Total Assigned 1,912,126 - - 1,912,126
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18.

19.

Nonmajor Total

General Community Governmental  Governmental
Eund Preservation Funds Funds
Unassigned
Special revenue - - (519,236) (519,236)
Capital projects - {165,577} {165,571
General trust stabilization 1,925,866 - - 1,925,866
General operating stabilization 683,407 - - 683,407
General fund 3,007,890 - - 3,997,890
Total Unassigned 6,607,163 - {674,813) 5,932,350
Total Fund Balance $ 10,728,058 § 5600266 $ 3,176,831 $ 19,505,156
T [——

General Fund UnaSsigned Fund Balance

The unassigned general fund balance reported on the balance sheet is
stated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP),
which differs in certain respects from the Massachusetis Uniform Municipal
Accounting System (UMAS). The following paragraphs summarize the major
differences.

The accompanying financial statements include an estimate for future poten-
tial tax refunds, which is not recognized under UMAS.

The following summarizes the specific differences between GAAFP basis and
budgetary basis of reporting the general fund unassigned fund balance:

GAAP basis balance $ 6,607,163

Stabilization fund . {2,609,273)

Tax refund estimate 865,976
Statutory (UMAS) Balance $ 4,863,866

Commitments and Contingencies

Qutstanding Legal Issues - There are several pending legal issues in which
the Town is involved. The Town's management is of the opinion that the
potential future settiement of such claims would not materially affect its
financial statements taken as a whole.

Grants - Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to
audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the
Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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20.

Post-Employment Healthcare and Life Insurance Benefits
Other Post-Employment Benefits

GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, requires governments to
account for other post-employment benefits (OPEB), primarily healthcare, on
an accrual basis rather than on a pay-as-you-go basis. The effect is the recog-
nition of an actuarially required contribution as an expense on the Statement of
Activities when a future retiree earns their post-employment benefits, rather
than when they use their post-employment benefit. To the extent that an entity
does not fund their actuarially required contribution, a post-employment benefit
liability is recognized on the Statement of Net Position over time.

A. Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Town pro-

vides post-employment heaithcare and life insurance benefits for retired
employees through the Town’s plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions, and employer contributions are governed by Chapter 32 of the
Massachusetts General Laws. As of July 1, 2013, the actuarial valuation
date, approximately 152 retirees and 310 active employees meet the eligibil-
ity requirements. The plan does not issue a separate financial report.

B. Benefits Provided

The Town provides medical, prescription drug, mental health/substance
abuse, and life insurance to retirees and their covered dependents. All
active employees who retire from the Town and meet the eligibility criteria
will receive these benefits.

C. Funding Policy

Retirees contribute 50% of the cost of the heaith plan, as determined by
the Town. The Town contributes the remainder of the health plan costs
on a pay-as-you-go basis.

D. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The Town's fiscal 2015 annual OPEB expense is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid

on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost per year and
amortize the unfunded actuarial liability over a period of thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the Town’s annual OPEB cost
for the year ending June 30, 2015, the amount actually contributed to the
plan, and the change in the Town’s net OPEB obligation based on an
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2013.
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Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 4513444

Interest on net OPEB obligation 722,514
Adjustment fo ARC (1,139,695)
Annual OPEB cost 4,096,263
Contributions made (1,072,732)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,023,531
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 18,062,845
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 21,086,376

The Town's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation were as follows:

Percentage of

: Annual OPEB OPEB Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2015 $ 4,096,263 26% $ 21,086,376
2014 $ 3,940,458 25% $ 18,062,845
2013 $ 3,251,584 28% $ 15,097,892

The Town's net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2015 is recorded as a
component of the “other long-term liabilities” line item.

. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2013, the date of the most
recent actuarial valuation was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 38,407,572

Less actuarial value of plan assets (50,489)
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 38,357,083

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0.1%
Covered payroll (active plan members) $§ 18,282,384

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 210%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reported amount and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of
events far into the future, Examples included assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribu-~
tions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
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21.

compared with past expectations and new esiimates are made about the
future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supple-
mentary information following the Notes to the Financial Statements, pre-
sents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value

of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

F. Acluarial Methods and Assumpgtions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
plan as understood by the Town and the ptan members and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the Town and plan members

to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include tech-
niques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2013, actuarial valuation the entry age actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Town
has not advance funded its obligation. The actuarial assumptions included
a 4.0% investment rate of return and an initial annual healthcare cost trend
rate of 8%, which decreases to a 5% long-term rate for all healthcare bene-
fits after 2019. The amortization costs for the initial UAAL is a level percent-
age of payroll for a period of 30 years, on a closed basis.

Retirement System

The Town follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27,
with respect to the employees’ retirement funds.

A. Plan Description

Substantially all employees of the Town {with the exception of school
department employees who serve in a teaching capacity) are members of
the Norfolk County Contributory Retirement System (the System), a cost
sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement system (PERS).
Eligible employees must participate in the System. The pension plan pro-
vides pension benefits, deferred allowances, and death and disability
benefits. Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws establishes the
authority of the System, contribution percentages and benefits paid. The
System Retirement Board does not have the authority to amend benefit pro-
visions. Additional information is disclosed in the System’s annual financial
reports publically available from the System located at 480 Neponset Street,
Building 15, Canton, Massachusetts 02021 or from the System’s website at
www. norfolkcountyretirement.org.
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B. Benefits Provided

The System provides for retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum

of 80% of a member's highest three-year average annual rate of regular
compensation. Benefit payments are based upon a member's age, length
of creditable service, level of compensation and group classification. Mem-
bers become vested after 10 years of creditable service. A retirement allow-
ance may be received upon reaching age 65 or upon attaining 20 years of
service. The plan also provides for early retirement at age 55 if the partici-
pant (1) has a record of 10 years of creditable service, (2) was on the Town
payroll on January 1, 1978, (3) voluntarily left Town empioyment on or after
that date, and (4) left accumulated annuity deductions in the fund. A retire-
ment allowance consists of two parts: an annuity and a pension. A mem-
ber's accumulated total deductions and a portion of the interest they
generate constitute the annuity. The difference between the total retirement
allowance and the annuity is the pension. The average retirement benefit is
approximately 80-85% pension and 15-20% annuity.

Per Chapter 176 of the Acts of 2011, for members who retire on or after
April 2, 2012, if in the 5 years of creditable service immediately preceding
retirement, the difference in the annual rate of regular compensation
between any 2 consecutive years exceeds 100 percent, the normal yearly
amount of the retirement allowance shall be based on the average annual
rate of regular compensation received by the member during the period of
5 consecutive years preceding retirement.

Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a
retirement allowance or are under the age of 55 are entitled to request a
refund of their accumulated total deductions. In addition, depending upon
the number of years of creditable service, such employees are entitied to
receive zero, fifty, or one hundred percent of the regular interest which
has accrued upon those deductions. However, effective July 1, 2010,
members voluntarily withdrawing with less than 10 years of service get
credited interest each year at a rate of 3% and do not forfeit any interest
previously eamed on contributions.

C. Contributions

Participants contribute a set percentage of their gross regular com-
pensation annually. Employee contribution percentages are specified
in Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws. The employee’s
individual contribution percentage is determined by their date of entry
into the system. In addition, all employees hired after January 1, 1979
contribute an additional 2% on all gross regular compensation over the
rate of $30,000 per year. The percentages are as follows:
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Before January 1, 1975 5%

January 1, 1975 - December 31, 1983 7%
January 1, 1984 - June 30, 1996 8%
Beginning July 1, 1996 9%

Employers are required to contribute at actuarially determined rates as
accepted by the Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission
(PERAC).

The Town's contribution to the System for the year ended June 30, 2015
was $1,565,052, which was equal to its annual required contribution.

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pen-
sion expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the System
and additions to/deductions from System’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by System. For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contribu-
tions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of
Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related lo Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the Town reported a liability of $17,193,151 for its
proporticnate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability
was measured as of December 31, 2014, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2014. The Town’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the Town’s long-term share
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions
of all participating employers, actuariaily determined. At December 31,
2014, the Town’s proportion was 3.31514 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Town recognized pension expense
of $1,861,400. In addition, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ 709,991
Total $_ 709,991
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year ended June 30:

2016 $ 177,498
2017 177,498
2018 177,408
2019 177,497

Total $ 709,991

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31,
2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the foliowing actuaria}
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

COLA 3% of the first $15,000
Salary increases 4% per year, including longevity
investment rate of return  8.25%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-200 mortality table (sex-distinct,
healthy employees for actives and healthy annuitants for retirees)
projected with scale BB and Generational Mortality. Disabled mortality is
the healthy retiree table ages set forward 2 years.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
selected from a best estimate range determined using the building block
approach. Under this method, an expected future real return range
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) is
calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return net of investment expenses by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major class are summarized in the foliowing table:

Long-term
Target  Expected
Asset  Real Rate

Asset Class Allocation of Return
Fixed income 19.00% 1.90%
Domestic equity 32.00% 71.70%
International equity 17.50% 6.40%
Real estate 9.00% 5.20%
Private equity 850%  11.90%
Hedge funds 9.00% 5.50%
Real assets 5.00% 5.50%
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Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension
liability was 8.25%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that the plan member contributions will be made at
the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made
at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments to current active
and inactive plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes
in the discount rate: The following presents the Town’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of

8.25 percent, as well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1 percentage-point lower (7.25%) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.25%)
than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
Fiscal Year Ended {7.25%) (8.25%) (9.25%)
6/30/2015 $ 21,576,648 $ 17,193,151 $ 13,425,791

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued System
financial report.

22, Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS)

A. Plan Description

The Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS) is a public
employee retirement system (PERS) that administers a cost-sharing muilti-
employer defined benefit plan, as defined in Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for
Pension Plans. MTRS is managed by the Commonwealth on behalf of
municipal feachers and municipal teacher retirees. The Commonwealth

is a nonemployer contributor and is responsible for all contributions and
future benefit requirements of the MTRS. The MTRS covers certified
teachers in cities (except Boston), towns, regional school districts, charter
schools, educational collaboratives, and Quincy College. The MTRS is
part of the Commonwealth’s reporting entity and does not issue a stand-
alone audited financial report.

Management of MTRS is vested in the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retire-
ment Board (MTRB), which consists of seven members—iwo elected by the
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MTRS members, one who is chosen by the six other MTRB members, the
State Treasurer (or their designee), the State Auditor (or their designee), a
member appointed by the Governor, and the Commissioner of Education (or
their designee), who serves ex-officio as the Chairman of the MTRB.

. Benefits Provided

MTRS provides retirement, disability, survivor, and death benefits to
members and their beneficiaries. Massachusetts General Laws (MGL)
establishes uniform benefit and contribution requirements for all contrib-
utory PERS. These requirements provide for superannuation retirement
allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member’s highest three-
year average annual rate of regular compensation. For employees hired
after April 1, 2012, retirement allowances are calculated on the basis of
the last five years or any five consecutive years, whichever is greater in
terms of compensation. Benefit payments are based upon a member’s
age, length of creditable service, and group creditable service, and group
classification. The authority for amending these provisions rests with the

Legisiature.

Members become vested after ten years of creditable service. A superan-
nuation retirement allowance may be received upon the completion of
twenty years of creditable service or upon reaching the age of 55 with ten
years of service. Normal retirement for most employees occurs at age 65.
Most employees who joined the system after April 1, 2012 cannot retire
prior to age 60.

The MTRS’ funding policies have been established by Chapter 32 of
the MGL. The Legislature has the authority to amend these policies.
The annuity portion of the MTRS retirement allowance is funded by
employees, who contribute a percentage of their regular compensation.
Costs of administering the plan are funded out of plan assets.

. Contributions

Member contributions for MTRS vary depending on the most recent date
of membership:

Hire Date % of Compensation
Prior to 1975 5% of reguiar compensation
1975 - 1983 7% of reguiar compensation

1984 to 6/30/1996 8% of regular compensation

7/1/1986 to present 9% of regular compensation

7/1/2001 to present 11% of regular compensation (for teachers
hired after 7/1/01 and those accepting provi-
sions of Chapter 114 of the Acts of 2000)

1979 to present An additional 2% of regular compensation in
excess of $30,000
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D. Acluarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2014 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2014 rolled forward
to June 30, 2014. The total pension liability for the June 30, 2013 meas-
urement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1,
2014, rolled back to June 30, 2013. This valuation used the following

assumptions:

+ {a) 8.0% investment rate of return, (b) 3.5% interest rate credited to the
annuity savings fund and (c) 3.0% cost of living increase per year.

¢ Salary increases are based on analyses of past experience but range
from 4.0% to 7.5% depending on length of service.

* Mortality rates were as follows:

— Pre-retirement - reflects RP-2000 Employees table adjusted for
“white-collar” employment projected 22 years with Scale AA
(gender distinct)

— Post-retirement - reflects RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant table adjusted
for large annuity amounts and projected 17 years with Scale AA
(gender distinct)

— Disability — reflects RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant table adjusted for
large annuity amounts and projected 17 years with Scale AA
{gender distinct) set forward 3 years for males.

Investment assets of the MTRS are with the Pension Reserves Investment
Trust (PRIT) Fund. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined {o produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage. Best estimates of geometric rates
of return for each major asset class included in the PRIT Fund’s target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized in the
following table:
Long-Term Expected
Target Real Rate of Return

Asset Class Allocation 2014 2013
Global equity 43.0% 7.2% 7.70%
Core fixed income 13.0% 2.5% 2.00%
Hedge funds 10.0% 5.5% 4.75%
Private equity 10.0% 8.8% 9.00%
Real estate 10.0% 6.3% 6.00%
Value added fixed income 10.0% 6.3% 6.30%
Timber/natural resources 4.0% 5.0% 5.00%
Total 100.0%
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E. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.0%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution
rates and the Commonwealth’s contributions will be made at rates equal
to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and

the member rates. Based on those assumptions, the net position was pro-
jected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the iong-term expected rate of return

on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

F. Sensitivity Analysis

The following illustrates the sensitivity of the collective net pension liability
to changes in the discount rate. In particular, the table presents the MTRS
collective net pension liability assuming it was calculated using a single
discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-percentage-point
higher than the current discount rate (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
Ended to 7% Rate 8% fo 9%

June 30, 2013 $ 21,426,000 $ 17,234,000 $ 13,672,000
June 30, 2014 $ 20,247,000 $ 15,896,000 $ 12,200,000

G. Special Funding Situation

The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute
to make all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the
member employers. Therefore, these employers are considered to be in a
special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB.68) and the Commonwealth is
a nonemployer contributing entity in MTRS. Since the employers do not
contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize for
each employer.

H. Town Proportions

In fiscal year 2014 (the most recent measurement period), the Common-
wealth’s proportionate share of the MTRS’ collective net pension fiability
and pension expense that is associated with the Town was $42,198,485
and $2,931,731 respectively, based on a proportionate share of .26546%.
As required by GASB 68, the Town has recognized its portion of the collec-
tive pension expense as both a revenue and expense in the government-
wide Statement of Activities.
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23. Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for
which the Town carries commercial insurance. There were no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and have been no
material settiements in excess of coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

24. Beginning Net Position Restatement

The beginning {July 1, 2014} net position of the Town has been restated as
follows:

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Business-Type Activities
Governmental Water Ambulance Sewer Sofid Waste
Activities Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
As previously reported $ 85696429 § 16,830,348 § 285793 $ 12163639 § 1,135663 § 30415443
GASB 68 implementation {15,920,889) {170,575} (98,409) {82,007) (129,571) {480,562)
As restated $ 69,775,540 $ 16650,773 $ 187384 $ 12081632 $§ 1006092 § 29,934,881
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2015
(Unaudited)

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

7172013
71172011
71142008
71112007

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

$50,489

$
$
$

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued )
Liability Unfunded
(AAL) - AAL Funded Covered
Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll
(b) (b-a} (alb) (¢}
$ 38,407,572 $ 38,357,083 0.1% $ 18,282,384
$ 31,351,424  § 31,351,424 0.0% N/A
$ 29,616,372  $ 29,616,372 0.0% N/A
$ 37,604,481  $ 37,604,481 0.0% N/A

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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UAAL as
a Percent-
age of
Covered
Payroli

I(b-a)/c]
210.1%
N/A
N/A
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TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2015
{Unaudited)
Norfolk County Retirement System. 201
Proportion of the net pension liability for the most recent
measurement date 3.31514%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability for the most
recent measurement date $ 17,193,151

Covered-employee payroll for the most recent
measurement date $ 9,196,377

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 187.0%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 60.1%

Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System:

Proportion of the net pension liability for the most recent
measurement date 0.26546%

The Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability
for the most recent measurement date $ -

Commonwealth of Massachusetts' total proportionate share

of the net pension liability that is associated with the Town 42,198,485
Total net pension liability associated with the Town $ 42,198485

Covered-employee payroll for the most recent
measurement date $ 16,276,664

The Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 0%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 61.64%

Schedules are intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be
displayed as they become available

See Independent Auditors’ Report.



TOWN OF MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2015
(Unaudited)
Norfolk County Retirement System: 2015
Contractually required contribution for the current
fiscal year $ 1,565,052
Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution (1,565,052)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -
Covered-employee payroll for the current fiscal year $ 9,196,377

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 17%

Schedules are intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be
displayed as they become available

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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AGENDA
ITEM #2

Approval — Submission for Hazard Mitigation
Grant Program Funds

Associated backup materials attached:
e Memo from Stephanie Mercandetti
e Letter of intent



Community & Economic

Devel

Stephanie A. Mercandetti,

Director

Medway Town Hall
155 Village Street
Medway, MA 02053
Phone: (508) 321-4918
Email:
smercandetti@townofmedway.org

nt Department

TOWN OF MEDWAY

Date: May 11, 2016
To:  Board of Selectmen
From: Stephanie Mercandetti, Director, Community & Economic Development

Re:  Submission of Request to Update the Town’s Hazard Mitigation Plan

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has made available the next round of
grant funding for the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant Program. Eligible projects including
planning such as updating local multi-hazard mitigation plans. The Town’s local plan expired in
April 2016. It is important that the Town must have a present plan in order to be eligible in the
future to apply and receive funding from the Hazard Mitigation Grant for project related
activities.

Grants will fund 75% of the cost with a 25% local share match. It is estimated that the federal
share amounts, awarded on a population basis, will be up to $18.000 for plan updates and will
require up to a $6,000 non-federal cost match.

For this funding round, the Massachusetts Emergency Management Agency (MEMA) will be
submitting one application to FEMA for planning grants on behalf of interested communities.
Municipalities must submit a letter of intent signed by the Chief Elected Official to MEMA no
later than May 25%,

Enclosed please find the draft letter of intent for your review. 1 will be in attendance at the
Board’s meeting on May 16" to address any questions you may have.



Board of Selectmen
Jobin A Foresto, Chair
%ry/'ane White, Uice-Chair
Kichard A D gzmocenzo, Clert
Dennis T C['ow/ey
Slenn D. Trindade

Medway Town Hall
155 Village Street
Medway, MA 02053
Phone (508) 533-3264
Fax (508) 321-4988

TOwWN OF MEDWAY
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

May 11, 2016

Massachusetts Emergency Management Agency
Attn: Sarah White

400 Worcester Road

Framingham MA 01702

RE: Letter of Intent and Non-Federal Cost Share Commitment for 2016 Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant
Program

Dear Ms. White;

Through this letter the Town of Medway wishes to be considered for 2016 Pre-Disaster Mitigation
Grant funding to update our Local Multi-hazard Mitigation Plan. Our current plan was approved on
April 12, 2011 and expired on April 11, 2016.

In addition, we commit to providing a non-federal cost share of up to $6,000 which is 25% of the total
cost of the planning project we will undertake if awarded. The non-federal cost share will be
comprised of Town funds. On May 9, 2016, Town Meeting approved the request for the appropriation
of funds.

Our community is committed to making our community more resilient from natural hazards and
reducing our overall vulnerability. We will be addressing the following hazards in our plan: Flood,
Dam Failure, Wind-Related (Hurricanes, Tornadoes), Winter Storms, Fire-Related (Brush Fires,
Drought), Geologic (Earthquakes, Landslides) and Extreme Temperatures. Flooding is the most
prevalent and serious natural hazard identified by local officials. Additionally, severe winter weather
and brush fires are also a concern for us. In our community, there are some critical infrastructure sites
that are situated in both a FEMA floodplain and within locally identified flood areas such as the
Walker Street Bridge, Milford Street Culvert, Main Street Culvert and the Town’s Populatic Street
Well. With the assistance of a Hazard Mitigation Grant, the Town has been working on drainage
improvements to the Brentwood Subdivision (built in the 1970°s), an area identified in the recently
expired plan which is prone to flooding.
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The Town is committed to implementing this planning process by reconvening and expanding our
local hazard mitigation planning team utilized in the development of our prior plan. The local team
will include the following Town departments: Administration, Department of Public Services, Fire
Department, Police Department, Community and Economic Development, Building Department, and
Board of Health. The local hazard mitigation planning team will be spearheaded by Town
Administrator Michael Boynton. The local hazard mitigation planning team will meet a minimum of
four times during the planning process. As part of our outreach for the planning update process, we
will hold a minimum of two public meetings as well as solicit input from key stakeholders in the
community including local organizations and business associations, such as the Medway Business
Council, regional institutions and residents. The Town has a long-standing demonstrated commitment
to working with a variety of stakeholder groups including its most recent membership in the Central
Norfolk County Regional Emergency Planning Committee.

We hope that you consider our commitment letter for our Hazard mitigation Planning Update and
include our community in the 2016 application to the Federal Emergency Management Agency for
funding. We look forward to this opportunity.

Very truly yours,

John A. Foresto, Chair
Board of Selectmen

Cc: Michael Boynton, Town Administrator
Thomas Holder, Director, Medway Department of Public Services
Chief Jeff Lynch, Medway Fire Department
Chief Allen Tingley, Medway Police Department
Bridget Graziano, Conservation Agent
Beth Hallal, Health Director
Jack Mee, Building Commissioner
Stephanie Mercandetti, Director, Medway Community & Economic Development
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AGENDA
ITEM #3

Approval — Contract with Clean Harbor for
Household Hazardous Waste Disposal - $10,000

Associated backup materials attached:
e Proposed contract

Proposed Motion: | move that the Board authorize the Chairman to
execute a contract with Clean Harbor for household hazardous waste
disposal in an amount not to exceed $10,000, subject to the review and
approval of both Town Counsel and the Town Accountant.



HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION AGREEMENT

Thia AGREEMENT shall be effective as of the date it becomes fully executed by and between
the Town of Medway (hereinafter*"Community™), and Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc.
(hereinafter "Clean Harbors"), a Massachusetts corporation.

Community and Clean Harbors hereby agree as follows:

1. On May 21, 2016, Clean Harbors shall have present at Alder Road (the "Site") an employee or
agent of Clean Harbors (the "Site Chemist™) trained in the identification and handling of
household hazardous wastes ("Wastes") as defined by state and federal laws and regulations, and
such personnel, equipment and materials as are necessary to handle, containerize, label, load and
transport said wastes for disposal in a manner which conforms to state and federal laws and
regulations.

2. a. Community agrees to pay Clean Harbors for services under this agreement in
accordance with the attached Rate Schedule ("Rates") with the condition the
Community not pay more than $10,000.00 (the "Contract Limit").

b. The Site Chemist will make a determination and notify the Community
Coordinator when the costs of acceptance, transportation and disposal of
Household Waste accepted by Clean Harbors at the site has reached the Contract
Limit. The Community Coordinator must be present at all times and will be
responsible for terminating the collection program upon notification by the Site
Chemist that the contract Limit has been reached.

C. Clean Harbors shall not be obligated to accept any waste for transportation or
disposal after the Contract Limit has been reached.

d. Community agrees to pay Clean Harbors within forty-five days of receipt of the
invoice at the appropriate town office.

3. The Community shall provide a police officer to maintain order and an authorized
representative ("Community Coordinator™) at the Site to carry out the responsibilities specified
in Paragraph 2.b. above.

4. Clean Harbors shall accept only household hazardous wastes for transportation and disposal
from those individuals who are approved by the Community Coordinator in such amounts as are
approved by the Community Coordinator.

5. The Community hereby grants to Clean Harbors the absolute right to reject any Wastes
delivered to the site.

6. Clean Harbors shall be deemed to be the "generator” of all Wastes accepted by Clean Harbors at
the Site.
7. Clean Harbors shall transport for disposal all Wastes which it has accepted at the Site. Such

Wastes shall be transported to licensed facilities for lawful disposal.

8. Clean Harbors represents that it shall possess on the day of collection:
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10.

11.

12.

13.

a. A valid Environmental Protection Agency identification number for generation and
transportation of hazardous wastes;

b. A valid state transporter's license for transportation of hazardous and acutely
hazardous wastes;

C. A vehicle identification device for each vehicle used by Clean Harbors to transport
Wastes from the Site;

d. Authorization from the Interstate Commerce Commission and the appropriate state
agency to operate a common carrier.

e. Liability insurance for claims resulting from bodily injury or death and property
damage evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance.

f. All other state and federal permits and licenses necessary to legally transport Wastes
in interstate commerce.

Title to all Wastes accepted by Clean Harbors at the Site shall pass to Clean Harbors.

Clean Harbors represents that it understands the currently known hazards to persons, property
and the environment resulting from the transportation, treatment and disposal of Wastes. Clean
Harbors further represents that it will perform all services under this Agreement in a safe,
efficient and lawful manner, using industry-accepted practices and methods.

The Community shall use best efforts to assure that all Wastes approved by the Community
Coordinator are the Household Wastes of community residents. The community represents and
warrants that execution of this Agreement by the signatory below has been duly authorized and is
in conformance with applicable provisions of state and local law.

Clean Harbors shall perform this Agreement as an independent contractor and shall have and
maintain complete control over its employees, agents and operations. Clean Harbors and its
agents and employees, shall not represent, act, purport to act, or be deemed to be the agent,
representative, employee or servant of the Community. Community agents or employees, the
Community Coordinator and the police officer identified in Paragraph 2 shall not represent, act,
purport to act or be deemed the agent, representative, employee or servant of Clean Harbors.

Any notice or other communication given under this Agreement shall be in writing and mailed or
delivered as follows:

To Community:

Town of Medway

Director, Department of Public Services
151 Village Street

Medway, MA 02053
To Clean Harbors:
Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc.

42 Longwater Drive
Norwell, MA 02061-9149
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14.

15.

(a)

(b)

(©)

16.

17.

18.

19.

Attn: General Counsel (Urgent Contract Matter)

INDEMNIFICATION

Clean Harbors hereby indemnifies and agrees to hold harmless and defend the Community and its
employees, officials and agents from and against all claims and liability, including all claims for
bodily injury or property damage that may arise out of the Clean Harbors performance of its

obligations under this contract, to the extent the same are caused by Clean Harbors’ negligence or
willful misconduct.

INSURANCE

Clean Harbors shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain general liability and motor vehicle
liability insurance policies protecting the Community in connection with any operations included
in this Contract, and shall have the Community as an additional insured on the policies. General
liability coverage shall be in the amount of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury liability and property damage liability.

Clean Harbors shall, before commencing performance of this Contract, provide by insurance for
the payment of compensation and the furnishing of other benefits in accordance with Mass. Gen.
L. Ch. 152, as amended, to all employed under the Contract and shall continue such insurance in
full force and effect during the term of the Contract.

All insurance coverage shall be in force from the time of the contract to the date when all work
under the Contract is completed and accepted by the Community. Certificates and any and all
renewals substantiating that required insurance coverage is in effect shall be filed with the
Community and shall list the Community as additional insured for each policy. Any cancellation
of insurance required by this contract, whether by the insurers or the insured, shall not be valid
unless written notice thereof is given by the party proposing cancellation to the other party and to
the Community at least fifteen days prior to the intended effective date thereof, which date should
be expressed in said notice. Clean Harbors shall provide a copy of additional insured
endorsements for all policies that require the Community to be listed as an additional insured.

If any section, subsection, sentence or clause of this Agreement shall be deemed to be illegal,
invalid or unenforceable for any reason, such illegality, invalidity or unenforceability shall not
affect the legality, validity or enforceability of other sections of this Agreement.

Any waiver by either party of any provision or condition of this Agreement shall not be construed
or deemed to be a waiver of any other provision or condition of this Agreement, nor a waiver of a
subsequent breach of the same provision or condition.

The validity, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be governed and construed
in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the

parties agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
for any disputes arising under this Agreement. Pursuant to General Laws Chapter 62C Section
49A, the undersigned certifies under the pains and penalties of perjury that Clean Harbors is in
compliance with the laws of the Commonwealth relating to taxes, reporting of employees and
contractors, and withholding and remitting child support.

As provided in Commonwealth of Massachusetts contract FAC53, this contract will not be
governed by Prevailing Wage Rate Requirements unless a specific job falls under the Public
Works definition (which states that anything which alters the appearance of a structure is a
Prevailing Wage job). Any service which meets this criterion is subject to Prevailing Wage
Rates and these rates will be posted by the Operational Services Division as part of the state
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contract and will be valid for the entire duration of the contract, including all extensions. All
employees of Clean Harbors engaged in these activities must be paid at least these rates for any
work performed under this Contract determined to be working in a public building or on a public
work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement by their duly authorized
representatives.

Town of Medway Clean Harbors Environmental
By its Board of Selectmen Services, Inc.

By:

Title:

Date:

Thomas Holder, Director of DPS
Date: Town of Medway
Date:

Approved as to form:

Date:

Barbara J. Saint André, Town Counsel
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AGENDA
I TEM #4

Presentation — Agricultural Committee

No associated backup materials.



AGENDA
ITEM #5

Approval — 2 Year Contract with All State
Asphalt Inc., for Chip Sealing - $50,000

Associated backup materials attached:
e Memo from Tom Holder
e Contract

Proposed Motion: | move that the Board authorize the Chairman to
execute a 2 year contract with All State Asphalt Inc., for chip sealing as
presented.



TOWN OF MEDWAY Entrusted To

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES Manage The

C TS Public
MEDWAY, MASSACHUSE Infrastructure

THOMAS M. HOLDER
DIRECTOR

DAVID D’AMICO
DEPUTY DIRECTOR

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Selectmen
From:  Thomas Holder, Director | Department of Public Services
Date: May 16, 2016

RE: Rubberized Chip Seal Contract —for All State Asphalt Inc.

Please find attached three (3) copies of a contract for Rubberized Chip Seal on roadways.

Contractor to furnish and apply Liquid Asphalt and treated stone on existing bituminous streets.
Contract estimated at $50,000. The Contract term will be for two years.

Bid Opening on 2/25/2016 No Bids for Rubber Chip Seal. Then, solicited a bid from All State Asphait.
All State Asphalt returned email bid on 2/26/2016

Bid opening results. — All State Asphalt Inc.

Chip Seal Single Stone Seal per sq yard $2.19
Chip Seal Double Stone Seal per sq yard $4.10
Chip Seal Rubberized Single Chip Seal per sq yard $ 4.60

We greatly appreciate your consideration of this issue.

HIGHWAY - WATER - SEWER - FLEET - PARKS - FACILITIES - SOLID WASTE

TOWN OFFICES | 155 VILLAGE STREET | MEDWAY, MASSAGHUSETTS 02053 | TEL B0B-533-3275




Gown of Wertvay

155 VILLAGE STREET
MEDWAY, MASSACHUSETTS 02053

SOLE SOURCE JUSTIFICATION

DATE.: 4/27/2016
DEPARTMENT: DPS SIGNATURE: DAVE DAMICO
DESCRIPTION:

Contractor to furnish and apply Liquid Asphalt and treated stone on existing bituminous
streets. Contract estimated at $50,000. The Contract term will be for two years.
Called Rubberized Chip Seal

VENDOR NAME & ADDRESS:
All State Asphalt, Inc. 325 Ambherst Road, P.O. Box 91, Sunderland, MA 01375

413-665-7021

AMOUNT: _ Not to exceed $50.000 for 2 vear contract

JUSTIFICATION:

Central Registry Published bid on 2/3/2016, Newspaper published on 2/5/2016

Bid Opening on 2/25/2016

No Bids for Rubber Chip Seal.

Then, called All State Asphalt and solicited a Bid for Rubber Chip Seal- Vendor return email
bid on 2/26/2016

This vendor was also the only vendor who send in a Bid for the Last “Bid Opening” of
3/27/2014. Their bid pricing for 2014 and 2016 was about the same cost per square yard.




ExaiBir B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
TOowN AND CONTRACTOR

THIS AGREEMENT shall be effective as of the date it becomes fully executed by all parties
hereto for CHIP SEAL (hereinafter referred to as the "Services"), by and between ALL
STATES ASPHALT, INC., a corporation duly organized under the laws of the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts, with a usual place of business at 325 AMHERST ROAD, SUNDERLAND,
MA 01375, (hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACTOR"), and the Town of Medway,

(hereinafter referred to as the "TOWN").

WITNESSETH that the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN, for the consideration hereinafter
named, agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of the following, and in the event of conflicts or discrepancies
among them, they shall be interpreted on the basis of the following priorities:

1) This agreement between town and contractor

2) Contractor's bid or proposal

3) Invitation for bids, bid specifications, request for proposals or purchase description
4) Copies of all required bonds, certificates of insurance and licenses required under the

contract.

EACH OF WHICH IS ATTACHED HERETO. These documents form the entire Agreement
between the parties and there are no other agreements between the parties. Any amendment or
modification to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by an official with the authority to

bind the Town.
ARTICLE 2: SCOPE OF WORK

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all materials, labor and equipment, and perform all work
shown on the Contract Documents, CHIP SEAL and the CONTRACTOR agrees to do
everything required by this Agreement and the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 3: TERMS OF AGREEMENT

This service agreement is effective as of the date of execution by ALL Parties and shall remain
in effect for 24 months from the date of contract execution.

ARTICLE 4: THE CONTRACT SUM

The TOWN shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the performance of this Agreement on a per unit
basis per Contractor’s proposal. Services to be ordered by individual release by authorized
personnel only. Quantities may vary. Total Contract amount shall not exceed $50,000. (Fifty

Thousand Dollars).



ARTICLE 5: PAYMENT

(a) The TOWN shall make payment as follows unless other arrangements for a particular
project have been made in advance by the DPS Director:

One final payment of the entire release amount per Contract forty-five days after receipt
of an invoice, provided the work be then fully completed or the goods and supplies
delivered and the Agreement fully performed.

(b} With any invoice, the CONTRACTOR shall submit evidence satisfactory to the TOWN
that the goods or supplies have been delivered and/or that the work has been completed in
accordance with this Agreement, and that all payrolls, material bills and other
indebtedness connected with the work have been paid. The billings shall include, if
applicable, all charges for CONTRACTOR, subcontractors, plans, equipment, models,
renderings, travel, reproductions, postage and delivery, and all other expenses. There
shall not be any markup for overhead, administration or profit for any of the above listed

services.

(¢) Payments upon substantial completion of contracts for construction of public works shail
be governed by General Laws chapter 30 section 39G.

ARTICLE 6: NON-PERFORMANCE,

In the case of any default on the part of the CONTRACTOR with respect to any of the terms of
this Agreement, the TOWN shall give written notice thereof, and if said default is not made good
within such time as the TOWN shall specify in writing, the TOWN shall notify the
CONTRACTOR in writing that there has been a breach of the Agreement, and thereafter the
TOWN shall have the right to secure the completion of the work remaining to be done on such
terms and in such manner as the TOWN shall determine, and the CONTRACTOR shall pay the
TOWN any money that the TOWN shall pay another CONTRACTOR for the completion of the
work, in excess of what the TOWN would have paid the CONTRACTOR for the completion of
the work, and the CONTRACTOR shall reimburse the TOWN for all expenses incurred by
reason of said breach. In case of such breach, the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to reccive
payment only for work satisfactorily completed prior to said breach, less any retainage the
TOWN is entitled to. The amount of any balance due the CONTRACTOR shall be determined
by the TOWN and certified to the CONTRACTOR.

ARTICLE 7: TERMINATION

(a) By executing this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR assumes the risk that the necessary
funding for completion of the project will be secured. If adequate funding for the project
cannot be secured after execution of this contract, the Town Accountant shall certify that
fact in writing for the parties.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Town reserves the right at
any time to suspend or terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for its convenience
or due to an unavailability of funds upon fourteen (14) days written notice to
CONTRACTOR. Town shall incur no liability by reason of such termination for
convenience except for the obligation to pay for work performed and accepted accruing
through the date of termination less any offset or claim of Town. Such obligation shall
not exceed the available appropriation. CONTRACTOR shall have no ri ght to recover




other amounts, including but not limited to amounts for lost profits, indirect, incidental or
consequential damages.

(c) If for any reason the TOWN terminates the Agreement due to lack of funding,
CONTRACTOR hereby releases the TOWN and every member, agency, and agent
thereof from all claims and liability to the CONTRACTOR for everything done,
furnished for or relating to the work pursuant to this agreement.

ARTICLE 8: NOTICE

All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective
upon receipt by hand delivery or certified mail to:

Town of Medway:
Town of Medway - DPS
David D’ Amico, DPS Deputy Director
155 Village Street
Medway, MA 02053

ALL STATES ASPHALT Inc
Alan Chicoine
Division Manager
325 Amherst Road
Sunderland, MA 01375

ARTICLE 9. INSURANCE

(a) The CONTRACTOR shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain commercial general
liability, including products-completed operations coverage, and motor vehicle liability
insurance policies protecting the TOWN in connection with any operations included in
this Contract, and shall have the TOWN named as an additional insured on the policies.
General liability coverage shall be in the amount of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury liability and property damage liability. The
commercial general liability policy shall contain additional insured endorsements of ISO
CG 20 37 and either ISO CG 20 33 or CG 20 10, or their equivalent. The Countractor
shall provide a copy of additional insured endorsements for ali policies that require
the Town to be listed as an additional insured.

{b) The CONTRACTOR shall, before commencing performance of this Contract, provide by
insurance for the payment of compensation and the furnishing of other benefits in
accordance with Mass. Gen. L. Ch. 152, as amended, to all employed under the Contract
and shall continue such insurance in full force and effect during the term of the Contract.

All insurance coverage shall be in force from the time of the Agreement until six (6)
years beyond the date when all work under the Contract is completed and accepted by the
TOWN. Certificates and any and all renewals substantiating that required
insurance coverage is in effect shall be filed with the TOWN and shall list the
TOWN as additional insured for each policy. Since this insurance is normally written
on a year-to-year basis, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the TOWN should coverage
become unavailable or if its policy should change. If the insurance required by this
contract is to be cancelled, whether by the insurers or the insured, such canceliation shall




not be valid unless written notice thereof is given by the party proposing cancellation to
the other party and to the Town at least fifteen days prior to the intended effective date
thereof, which date should be expressed in said notice. Such cancellation shall not waive
or excuse the Contractor’s responsibility for complying with the insurance requirements

of this Contract.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and
save harmless the TOWN and all of the TOWN'S officers, agents and employees from
and against all suits and claims of liability of every name and nature, including costs
of defending any action, for or on account of any injuries to persons or damage to
property of the TOWN or any person, firm, corporation or association arising out of
or resulting from any act, omission, or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, subcontractors
and its and their agents or employees. The foregoing provisions shall survive the
termination or expiration of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to be released,
waived or modified in any respect by reason of any surety or insurance provided by the
CONTRACTOR under the Contract.

ARTICLE 10: SUBCONTRACTING OF WORK

The CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract any of the work that it is required to perform under
this Contract to any corporation, entity or person without the prior written approval of the

TOWN.
ARTICLE 11: MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

Unless otherwise specified, all materials and equipment incorporated in the work under the
Contract shall be new. All workmanship shall be first class and by persons qualified in the

respective trades.
ARTICLE 12: PREVAILING WAGE RATES

The CONTRACTOR shall pay the prevailing wage and comply with Mass. General Laws
chapter 149, sections. 26 - 27D, and a Statement of Compliance shall be included in the Contract
Documents. Pursuant to Mass. General Laws chapter 149, sections 26 and 27B, the
CONTRACTOR shall file weekly certified payroll records with the TOWN for all employees
who have worked on the Project. The TOWN and the CONTRACTOR shall preserve said
records for a period of not less than three years from the date of completion of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 13: PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS

(a) The CONTRACTOR shall furnish a performance bond from a surety company qualified
to do business under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts which is
satisfactory to the TOWN in the full amount (100%) of the Contract price.

(b) The CONTRACTOR shall fumish a payment bond from a surety company qualified to
do business under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts which is satisfactory
to the TOWN in the full amount (100%) of the Agreement price for payment of all labor
and materials used to carry out the Agreement,




ARTICLE 14: GUARANTEE OF WORK

(a) If, within any guarantee period, repairs or changes are required in connection with
guaranteed work, which in the opinion of the TOWN are rendered necessary as a result of
the use of materials, equipment or workmanship which are inferior, defective or not in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall, promptly upon
receipt of notice from the TOWN and at its own expense:

(1)  Make goods and services conform to this Agreement;

(2)  Make good all damage to the site, or equipment or contents thereof, which, in the
opinion of the TOWN, is the result of the use of materials, equipment or
workmanship which are inferior, defective, or not in accordance with the terms of

the Agreement; and

(3)  Make good any work or material, or the equipment or site, which is disturbed in
fulfilling any such guarantee.

ARTICLE 15: GOVERNING LAWwW

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the work required under this Agreement in conformity with
requirements and standards of the TOWN and all applicable laws of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, its political subdivisions, and the Federal Government.

This Agreement and performance thereunder are governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts and all other applicable by-laws and administrative rules, regulations and orders.

ARTICLE 16: BINDING AGREEMENT AND ASSIGNMENT OF INTEREST

This Agreement shall be binding upon the TOWN and the CONTRACTOR and the pariners,
successors, heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and legal representatives of the TOWN and
the CONTRACTOR. Neither the TOWN nor the CONTRACTOR shall assign, sublet or transfer
any interest in this Agreement without the written consent of each other, and such consent shall

not be unreasonably withheld.
ARTICLE 17: LICENSURE AND COMPLIANCE WITH MASSACHUSETTS TAX LAwW

By executing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees and certifies that it is licensed to perform
the services required by this Agreement, and that it will secure such licensure for so long as it is
bound to perform services under this Agreement. Documentation of such licensure shall be
attached to this Agreement as an Exhibit. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable laws,
ordinances, rules or regulations or codes of the State or Town in performing the work embraced

by this Agreement.

Pursuant to Mass. General Laws chapter 62C, section 49A, the CONTRACTOR certifies under
the penalties of perjury that the CONTRACTOR has complied with all laws of the
Commonwealth relating to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and

remitting of child support.




ARTICLE 18: CORPORATE CONTRACTOR

The CONTRACTOR shall endorse upon this Agreement (or attach hereto) a Clerk’s Certificate
certifying the authority of the party signing this Agreement for the corporation and the existence
of such corporation. Such certificate shall be accompanied by a letter or other instrument stating
that such authority continues in force and effect as of the date of submission. The certificate and
letter will be Exhibit D to this Agreement. This Agreement shall not be enforceable against the
Town unless and until the CONTRACTOR complies with this section.

ARTICLE 19: GENERAL LAWS

The following provisions of state statute apply to the work performed under this agreement, and
these provisions supersede any conflicting provision of this agreement: General Laws chapter 30
§39F; chapter 30 §39G; chapter 30 §391; chapter 30 §39M; chapter 30 §39N; chapter 30 §390;
chapter 30 §39P; chapter 30 §39R; chapter 149 §25; chapter 149 §26; chapter 149 §34; chapter
149 §34A; chapter 149 §334B; copies of these statutes are attached hereto and the applicable
sections are incorporated herein by reference.

Each and every other provision of law or clause required by law to be inserted in this agreement
shall be deemed to be inserted herein, and the agreement shall be read and enforced as though it
were included herein and any provision contrary to such law or clause shall be deemed null and
void. If through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not correctly inserted, then upon
application of either party, the agreement shall forthwith be physically amended to make such

insertion.
ARTICLE 20; SCHEDULING AND PENALTIES

(a) The Contractor shall provide a contact telephone number and e-mail address to be used by the Town
of Medway Highway Superintendent or his designee to schedule work releases. The Town shall
contact the Contractor Monday through Friday, 7:00 am to 3:00 pm. at either the telephone number
or email address supplied by the Contractor to schedule work releases. The Contractor shall respond
within 36 hours to the Superintendent or his designee (excluding Sundays). Failure to respond to a
scheduling request within 36 hours will result in the Town receiving a 15 percent discount on ali
work associated with the work release requested to be scheduled.

(b) The Confractor agrees to schedule work within a 30 day period from the time of a scheduling
contact from the Town unless an alternate time is selected by mutual agreement.

(¢) The Contractor agrees to mobilize and be ready for work as scheduled for any given work release.
Failure to mobilize as scheduled will result in the Town receiving a 15 percent discount on all work
associated with the work release. In addition, the Contractor agrees to compensate the Town for all
preparation work associated with the work release including crew time, equipment, and police
details for any no show/no notification. This amount will be calculated by the Town and subtracted
from the next payment due to the Contractor; if no further payment is due to the Contractor from the
Town, then the amount calculated by the Town will be billed to the Contractor, payable within

fifteen days of the date billed.

(d) The Town recognizes the need to re-schedule work from time to time due to weather and other
unforeseen conditions. The Contractor shall notify the Highway Superintendent or his designee of a
need to reschedule work at least 36 hours in advance of the scheduted time (excluding Sundays).
Work to be rescheduled must be completed within 14 days of the original schedule. Work will not
be allowed to be rescheduled more than one time unless mutualtly agreed to by the Town.




(e) The obligations of the TOWN hereunder shall be subject to appropriation on a fiscal year
basis. In the absence of appropriation, this agreement shall be terminated immediately
without Hability of the TOWN for damages, lost profits, penalties, or other charges arising

from early termination

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed copies of this Agreement the day
and year first above written. *

*If a Corporation, attach to each signed copy of this Agreement an attested copy of the vote of
the Corporation authorizing the said signing and sealing.

TOWN OF MEDWAY

CONTRACTOR: ALL STATES ASPHALT Inc
By its Board of Selectmen

Byﬂ g b
Alan L. Chicoine

Titie: Division Manager

Corporate Seal:

T b d DATE Signed:
' 7;“}—“5%/5‘ ««««« - b
Thomas Holder — Director
Department of Public Service
Approved As To Form

Wi

Town Accountant

Dated: ‘Aﬂ J(A b

Funding Source:

PR ]
Account: A CClomls ffg

Town Counsel
AL~ G

Dated;




Exhibit C

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH
MASSACHUSETTS TAXLAWS

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 62C, Section 49A, the undersigned acting on behalf of the
Contractor®, certify under penalties of perjury that to the best knowledge and belief, the Contractor* is in
compliance with all laws of the Commonwealth relating to taxes, reporting of employee and contractors, and
withholding and remitting child support.

Individual
N/A
Signature Date
Name (please print or type) Socral Security Number
Corporate

All States Asphalt, Inc.

Corporate Name {please print or type)

\ 8 A March 25, 2016
Signature of Corporate Officer Date
Alan L. Chicoine Division Manager

Name of Corporate Officer (please print or type) Titie

04-2216868

Taxpayer Identtfication Number

¥ Asused in this certification, the word “Contractor” shall mean any natural person, business, partnership,
corporation, union, committee, club, or other organization, entity, or group of individuals.




Exhibit D

CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE BIDDER

I Heather Whittier

Certify that [ am __ Assistant Secretary of the

Corporation named as Bidder in the within Bid Form that _ Alan L. Chicoine

who signed said Bid Forin on behalf of the Bidder was then

Division Manager of said Corporation; that | know his signature and

that his signature hereto is genuine and that said Bid Form was duly signed, sealed, and executed for

and on behalf of said Corporation by authority of its Board of Directors.

(Corporate Seal) m M

(Signature) Heather Whittier

Assistant Secretary
(Title)

This Certificate must be completed where the Bidder is a Corporation, and should be so completed by
its Clerk. In the event that the Clerk is the person signing the Proposal on behalf of the Corporation,
this Certificate must be completed by another Officer of the Corporation.




Exhibit E

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

At a duly authorized meeting of the Board of Directors of the

All States Asphalt, Inc. heldon  2/1/16 it
{Name of Corporation) (Date)

was voted that:

_Alan L. Chicoine Division Manager
(Name) (Officer)

Of this company, be and he/she hereby is anthorized to execute contracts and bonds in the name and on behalf of
said company, and affix its corporate seal hereto; and such execution of any contract or obligation in this company’s
name on its behalf by such

Division Manager under seal of the company,
(Officer)

Shall be valid and binding upon this company.

A true copy,

ATTEST: M Lm
Heather Whittier
TITLE: Assistant Secretary
PLACE OF BUSINESS: 325 Ambherst Road
Sunderland, MA 01375
DATE OF THIS CONTRACT: March 25, 2016
Asst.
I hereby certify that I am the clerk of the _ All States Asphalt, Inc.
(Name of Corporation})
And that Alan L. Chicoine is duly elected Division Manager
(NAME) (POSITION)

Of said company, and that the above vote has not been amended or rescinded and remains in full force and effect as
of the date of this contract.

Asst(CLERK) Heather Whittier
CORPORATE SEAL:




Exhibit F

Town of Medway, Massachusetis 02053

CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION

REVENUE ENFORCEMENT AND PROTECTION ACT

Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 701 of the Acts of 1983, requires that each bidder must certify as follows:

CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION

The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this bid or proposal has
been made and submitted in good faith and without collusion or fraud with any
other person. As used in this certification, the word “person” shall mean any
natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, club, or other
organization, entity, or group of individuals.

L o=

Alan L. Chicoine  Sjonature of individual submitting bid or proposal
Division Manager

All States Asphalt, Inc.
Name of Business (please type or print)




Exhibit G

PUBLIC CONTRACTOR DEBARMENT
The undersigned certifies under penalty of perjury that the below named contractor is not presently debarred from
doing public construction work in the commonwealth under the provisions of section twenty-nine F of chapter
twenty-nine, or any other applicable debarment provisions of any other chapter of the General Laws or any rule or

regulation promulgated thereunder.

OSHA TRAINING
Pursuant to G.L. c. 30, §398, the Contractor hereby certifies under penalties of perjury as follows:

Contractor is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be
employed in the work;

All employees to be employed at the worksite will have successfully completed a course in construction
safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration that is at least 10
hours in duration at the time the employee begins work and they shall furnish documentation of successful
completion of said course with the first certified pavroll report for each employee; and

All employees to be employed in the work subject to this contract have successfully completed a course
in construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health
Administration that is at least 10 hours in duration.

COMPLETE AND SIGN BELOW:

[/é %’\T‘& March 25, 2016

Authorized Person’s Signature Date

Alan L. Chicoine, Division Manager
Print Name & Title of Signatory

All States Asphalt, Inc.

Narne of Contractor




ﬁ

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

o -
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 32212016

THIS CERTIFICATE 1S ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain poficies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER Emg.‘c.r
Reagan Insurance g —— FAX i
S E Main Street (ALC, No. Ext) 315-673-2094 f (AIC, No):315-673-1121
P O Box 191 ADDRESS:
Marcelius NY 13108 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
wsurer A :Qld Republic Insurance Company 24147
INSURED ALLSTA | INsURER B :Hanover Insurance Companies 2292
All States Asphalt, inc. & ISURER C :
Subsidiaries :
325 Amherst Rd., P.O. Box 91 WEURERD:
Sunderland MA 01375 INSURERE ;
INSURER F £
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1201748863 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 8 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOGUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED MEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

i ADDLSUER] ICY EFF ICY EXP
IETS'F‘!‘ TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER rfn, gllbDIYYYY) cm'ﬁmmmf) LIMITS
A GENERAL LIABILITY Y Y MWZY 305791 2/1/2018 2M12017 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
e ] DAME
X | GOMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREM%EggO(EEEwnL;nm) $400,000
—l CLAIMS-MADE QCCUR MED EXP (Any ons person) | $10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $5,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUGTS - COMPIOP AGG | $2,000,000
pouicy [X [ 7B Lo $
A | AUTOMGBILE LIABILITY Y ¥ |Mwresos7ez 2112016 21112017 D SINGLE T ™ 000,000
X | ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per parson) | &
ALL QWNED SCHEDULED :
ALL OV - SEHED BODILY iNJURY (Per accident}| $
% NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
HIRED ALUTOS AUTOS (Per accidant)
Hired Phys Drng $145,000
UMBRELLA LIAB cecuR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3
DED ' ! RETENTION § $
[ | WORKERS GOMPENSATION Y | MWC305790 21112016 2017 X [ WESTAIL T TOTE:
AND ENPLOYERS' LIABILITY Yiu
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? IE NiA
{Mandatory in NH} EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $1,000,000
M yas, dascribe under
DESCRIPTION OF CPERATIONS below . E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $1,000,000
B Leased/Rented Equip. & RHS875076310 2112016 2/1/2017 $850,000 Ded. $2,500
installation Coverage $1,000,000 Ded. §1,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 104, Additional Remarks Schadule, if more space is required)

Additional Insured and Waiver of Subrogation are applicable only if required by contract/*MCS90 endorsement applies
General Liability policy is on a primary & non-contributory basis & includes completed operations

Auto policy is on & primary & non-contributory basis/Auto Hired Physical Damage Deds $250 Comp/$500 Coll
“Workers Compensation: NY,CT,NH,VT,RI, ME,NJ,DE, MA

Certificate holder is named as an additional insured on the General Liability and Auto Liability policies.
Project: Chip Seal

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Town of Medway ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Dep%rtl?went Sof Public Services

155 Village Street

MEdW&y MA 02053 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

A5 B

® 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




POLICY NUMBER:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG20150413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
ADDITIONAL INSURED - VENDORS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEBULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or
Organization{s) (Vendor)

Your Products

All persons or organizations when required by writien contract
or agreement

All producis of the insured

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section Il ~ Who Is An Insured is amended to
inciude as an additional insured any person(s) or
organization(s} (referred to throughout this
endorsement as vendor) shown in the Schedule,
but only with respect to "bodily injury" or "property
damage” arising out of "your products shown in
the Schedule which are distributed or sold in the
regular course of the vendor's business.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such vendor only
applies to the extent permitted by law,; and

2. If coverage provided to the vendor is required
by a contract or sgreement, the insurance
afforded to such vendor will not be broader
than that which you are required by the
contract or agreement to provide for such
vendor.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
vendors, the following additional exclusions apply:

1. The insurance afforded the vendor does not
apply to:

a.

"Bodily injury" or "property damage" for
which the vendor is obligated o pay
damages by reason of the assumption of
liabitity in a coniract or agreement. This
exclusion does not apply to [ability for
damages that the vendor would have in the
absence of the contract or agieement;

b. Any express warranty unauthorized by you;

Any physical or chemical change in the
product made intentionally by the vendor;

. Repackaging, except when unpacked solely

for the purpose of  inspection,
demonstration, testing, or the substitution of
parts  under instructions from  the
manufatturer, and then repackaged in the
original container,

CG 20150413 @ Insurance Senvices Office, Inc., 2012 Page {of2




Page 2 of 2

. Any failure to make such inspections,
adjustmerts, tests or senvicing as the
vendor has agreed io make or normally
undertakes fo make in the usual course of
business, in connection with the distribution
or saie of the products;

. Demonsiration, installation, servicing or
repair operations, except such operations
performed at the wvendor's premises in
cennection with the sale of the product,

. Preducts which, after distribution or sale by
you, have been labeled or relabeled or
used as a container, part or ingredient of
any other thing or substance by ot for the
vendor; or

. "Badily injury" or "properly damage" arising
out of the sole negligence of the vendor for
its own acls or omissions or those of iis
employees or anyone else acting on iis
behalf. However, this exclusion does not
apply to:

(1) The exceptions comained in Sub-
paragraphs d. orf.; or

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012

{2) Such inspections, adjustments, tests or
servicing as the vendor has agreed to
make or normally undertakes to make in
the usual course of business, in
cannection with the distribution or sale
of the products.

2. This insurance doas not apply to any insured
person or organization, from whom you have
acquired such products, or any ingredient, par
or container, entering into, accompanying or
containing such products,

. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

vendors, the following is added to Section Il —
Limits Of Insurance:

if coverage provided to the vendor is required by a
contract or agreement, the most we will pay on
behalf of the vendor is the amount of insurance:

1. Required by the coniract or agreement; or

2. Availzble under the applicable Limils of
insurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever is [ess.

This endersement shall not increase the
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the
Declarations.

cG20150413



THIS FORM APPLIES IN: MA

IL 10 (12/06) OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE COMPANY
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

DESIGNATED INSURED

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
GARAGE COVERAGE FORM

MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM

SCHEDULE

Name of Person(s), or Crganization(s}:

As required by contract or agreement

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the
Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.)

Each person or organization shown in the Schedule is an “insured™ for Liability Coverage or Liability
Insurance, but only to the extent that the person or organization qualifies as an "insured” under WHO 1S
INSURED or Who Is An Insured provision contained in the Coverage Form/Policy.

PCAC101103

MWTB 300419 All States Asphall, Inc. 02/01/2014 - 02/01/2015



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20010413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endarsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED CPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Other Insurance {2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or
Condition and supersedes any provision to the agreement that this insurance would be
contrary: primary and would not seek contribution

from any other insurance available to the

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance additional insured.

This insurance is primary to and will not seek
contribution from any other insurance available
to an additional insured under your policy
provided that:

(1) The additional insured is a Named Insured
under such other insurance; and

CG 20010413 @ Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1



IL.10 (12/06) OLD REPUBLIC INSURANCE COMPANY
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
GARAGE COVERAGE FORM ,
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM
TRUCKERS COVERAGE FORM

SCHEDULE

Name of Person or Organization: Al persons or organizations as required by coniract or agreement

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the
Declarations as applicable o this endorsement.}

The Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us Condition is changed by adding the following:
We waive any right of recovery we may have against the person(s) or organization{s) shown in the

Schedule because of payments we make for injury or damage. This waiver applies only to the person or
organization shown in the Schedule.

PCA 024 03 06



POLICY NUMBER:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG20160413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED ~ OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS — SCHEDULED PERSON OR
ORGANIZATION

This endorsement madifies insurance provided under the following:
COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

eonlradt ar agreemant

SCHEDULE
Name OF Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Organization(s} Location(s) Of Covered Operations
Al persons or organizatiens when required by wrillan All locattons

Information required to complate this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarafions.

A. Section I - Who s An Insured is amended 1o

B. With respect to the Insurance afforded to these

ce20100413

include as an additional insured the person(s) or
organization{s) shown in the Schedule, hut only
with respect to liability for "bodily injury”, “properiy
damage” or “personal and advedising njury"
caused, in whole or in parl, by:

1. Your acts or omissions; or

2. The acls or omissions of those acting on your
behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations for
the additional insured(s) at the location(s)
designated above.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insurad only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional Insured is
required by a confract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract er agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

@ Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012

additional Insureds, the following additional
exclusions apply:

This Insurance does not apply to "bodily injury” or
"property damage” occurring after:

4. Al work, Including materlals, pars or
equipment fumished In connection with such
work, on the project {(other than service,
maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or
on behalfl of the additional insured(s) at the
lncation of the covered operations has been
completed; or

That portion of "your work® oul of which the
infury or damage arises has been put to its
intended use by any person or organization
other than another ¢oniracios or subcontractor
engaged [n performing operations for a
principai as a part of the same project

2

.

Pagelof2
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POLICY NUMBER:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 203704 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLIGY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED — OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS ~ COMPLETED OPERATIONS

This endorsement madifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name OF Additional Insured Person(s}
Or Organization(s)

Location And Bescription Of Completed Operations

All persons o organizations when required by wrltten coatract or
agreemant

All scompleted operations

Information required io complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarglions,

A. Seetion U — Who Js An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedute, but only
with respect o Habllity for “bodily Wjury® or
"properly damage” caused, in whole or in part, by
"wour work® at the location designaied and
described in the Schedule of this endorsement
performed for that additional insured and
glcluc]}gd in the "producis-completed operations

azard",

However:

4. The insurance afforded fo such additional
insured only appiies to the extent permitled
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

B, With respect fo the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the folowing is added to
Seciion Il - Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured s
required by a contract or agreement, the most we
will pay on hehalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1. Reguired by the contract or agreement; or

2. Available under the applicable Lims of
Insurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever ig less.

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable
Limifs of insurance shown in the Declarations.

CG 20370413 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 4



POLICY NUMBER:

GCOMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG24040500

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY
AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERGCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PARY

PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Person Or Organization: Alt Persons Or Organizations As Required By Contract or Agreement

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

The following is added 1o Paragraph 8. Transfer Of
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of
Section IV - Conditians:

We waive any right of recovery we may have against
the person or organization shown in the Schedule
above because of payments we make for Injury or
damage arising out of your ongeing operations of
*vour work" done under a contract with that person
or organization and included in the “products-
completed operations hazard". This waiver applies
only to the person or organization shown in the
Schedule above.

CG 24040509 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2008 Page 1 of 1



WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY WC 000313

POLICY NUMBER:

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone Eable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not enforce
our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. (This agresment applies only to the extent that you
perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.)

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly 1o benefit anyone not named in the Schedule.

SCHEDULE

BLANKET COVERAGE AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT

DATE OF ISSUE:

1983 National Council on Compensation [nsurance.

INSURED COPY



Bond No. 837066448
PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That we __All States Asphalt, Inc.
(Neme of Contractor)

a Corporation _ hereinafter called “Principal® and
{Corporation, Partnership, Joint Venture or Individual)

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company of Boston , State of Massachusetts
(Surety) (City & State)

hereinafter called the "Surety” and licensed by the State
Division of Insurance to do business under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, are

held and firmly bound to the Bity/Town of Medway , Massachusetts, hereinafter called
"Owner", in the penal sum of

Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
($.50,000.00 Y in lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which

sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and
successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that Whereas, the Principal entered liito &
certain contract with the Owner, dated the 26th day of __March , 2016 (the
“Construction Contract™), for the construction described as foflows: _

Chip Seal

NOW, THEREFORGE, if the Principal shall well, truly and faithfully perform its duties, all the
undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of the Construction Contract during
the original term thereof, and any extensions thereof which may be granted by the Owner, with
or without notice to the Surety, and if he shali satisfy all claims and demands incurred under the
Construction Contract, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless the Owner from all costs and
damages which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall reimburse and repay the
Owner all outlay and expense which the Owner may incur in making good any default, then this
abtigation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the Surety’s obligation under this Bond shall arise after (1) the
Owner has declared the Principal in default of the Construction Contract or any provision thercol
or (2) has declared that the Principal has failed, or is otherwise unable or unwilling, to execute
the work consistent with, and in conformance to, the Construction Contract (collectively veferred
to as a “Contractor Default”). The determination of a Contractor Default shall be made solely by
the Owner. The Owner need not terminate the Construction Contract to declare a Confractor

Default or to invoke its rights under this Bond.

When the Surety’s obligation under this Bond arises, the Surety, at its sole expense and at the
consent and election of the Owner, shall promptly take one of the following steps: (1) atrange for
the Principal to perform and complete the work of the Construction Contract: (2) arrange fora
contractor other than the Principal to perform and complete the work of the Construction
Contract; (3) reimburse the Owner, in a manner and at such time as the Owner shall decide, for
all costs and expenses incurred by the Owner in performing and completing the work of the




Construction Contract. Surety will keep Owner reasonably informed of the progress, status and
results of any investigation of any claim of the Owner.

If the Surety does not proceed as provided in this Bond with due diligence and all deliberate
speed, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default of this Bond, and the Ownet shall be entitled

to enforce any remedy available to the Owner.

After the Surety’s obligation under this Bond arises, the Surety is obligated, to the limit of the
amounts of this Bond, for (1) the correction of defective work and completion of the
Construction Contract; (2) additional design, professional services, and legal costs, including
attorneys’ fees, resulting from the Contractor Default or from the default of the Surety under this
Bond; {3) any additional work beyond the Construction Contract made necessary by the
Contractor Default or default of the Surety under this Bond; (4) indemnification obligation of the
Principal, if any, as provided in the Construction Confract; and (3) liquidated damages as
provided in the Construction Contract, or if none are so specified, actual and foreseeable
consequential damages resulting from the Contractor Default or default of the Surety under this

Bond.

Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond shall be instituted in any court of competent
jurisdiction in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time,
alteration or addition to the terms of the Construction Contract or to the work to be performed
thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on
this Bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or
addition to the tetmns of the Construction Contract or to the work or to the specifications.




IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, this instrument is executed in Three (3} counterparts, cach-one of
which shail be deemed an original, this the __ 28t day of March , 2016

AT

L5
T 4 el
Frincipal

m U(Wt By _AlanL. Chicaine, Division Manager

Asst.(Principal Secietary) Heather Whittier
All States Asphalt, Inc.

325 Amherst Road, P.Q. Box 91

Sunderand, MA 01375
{Address-Zip Code)

W{j‘b § Zalorkar) sn

t1ess as 1o Pimclpal
. LaBombard

325 Amherst Rd., PO Box 91
Sunderland. MA 01375

(Address-Zip Code)

By Monique Laroche, Attorney-in-Fact

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company

175 Berkely Street,

Boston, MA 02116
(Address-Zip Code)

Courtney Sprague (SEAL)
Wilness as fo Surety

James P. Reagan Agency, Inc.

8 East Main Street, P.G. Box 191

Marcellus, NY 13108

{Address-Zip Code)

NOTE:Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Contract.  If Contractor is a Partnership, all
partners should execute Bond.




Bond No. 837066448
PAYMENT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That we

All States Asphalt, Inc. a Corporation
(Name of Contraclor) (Corporation, Partnership, Joint Venture or Individual)

hereinafter called "Principal” and __Liberty Mutual Insurance Company of Boston .
(Surety)
State of _Massachusetts hereinafter called the “Surety” and licensed by the State
{City and State)
Division of Insurance to do business under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, are held and
firmly bound to thex@itg/Town of Medway , Massachusetts, hereinafter called "Owner", in the
penal sum of Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
(% 50,000.00 ) in lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and

truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and
severally, firmly by these presents,

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that Whereas, the Principal entered into a certain
contract with the Owner, dated the 28th day of March , 2016 , for the
construction described as follows:

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, subcontractors,
and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the prosecution of the work provided for
in such contract, and any authorized extension or modification thereof, including ail amounts due for
materials, [ubricants, oil, gasoline, coal and coke, repairs on machinery, equipment and tools, consumed
or used in connection with the construction of such wark, and all insurance premiuyms on said work, and
for all labor, performed in such work whether by subcentractor or otherwise, then this obligation shali be

void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect,

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no
change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or {o the work to be
performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation
on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition
to the terms of this contract ot to the work or to the specifications.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall abridge the
right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in Three (3) counterparts, each one of which
shall be deemed an original, this the __28th day of March , 2016,




INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of N/A

County of

On this day of , , before me persenally appeared
known to me to be the

person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and

__he__duly acknowledged to me that _he_ executed the same.

Notary Public

CORPORATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of Massachusetts
County of _Franklin

On this 23 day of March, 2016, before me personally appeared Alan L. Chicoine to me
known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: that he/she resides af
Phillipston, MA : that he/she is Division Mangger of the corporation
described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he/she knows the seal
of said corporation; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it
was so affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said corporation: and that he/she

signed his/her name thereto by like order. ’ !

Nofory Publlc ; o

SURETY ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of New York
County of ©Cnondagag

On this 28th day of March, 2016, before me personally appeared Monigue Laroche to
me known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and say: that he/she resides in the
City of Camillus, NY; that he/she is the Attorney-In-Fact of the above signed surety, the
corporation described in and which executed the within instrument; that he/she knows
the corporate seal of said corporation; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such
corporate seal; that it was so affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said

corporation; and that he/she signed his/her name thereto by like order.

WMZ//// // /ﬁrd/@/

fory Public~

COURTNEY PEPPER PARDY
Notary Pubiic, State of New York
Quatifiad in Drondaga Co. Mo, GIPAB 040720
By Commission bxpies Way 19, 2018




Liberty Mutual Insurance Company

175 Berkely Street,
Boston, MA 02116
(Address-Zip Code)

Courtney Sprague
Witness as to Surety

(SEAL)

James P. Reagan Agengcy, Inc.
8 East Main Street, P.O. Box 191
Marcellus, NY 13108

(Address-Zip Code)

NOTE:Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Contract.

should execute Bond.

Monique Laroche, Attorney-in-Fact

If Contractor is a Partnership, all partners
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~THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY IS NOT VALID UNLESS IT |S PRINTED ON RED. BACKGROUND :
‘ Thrs Power of Attorney Ilmlts the acts of those named herern, and they have ne authorlty to hind the Company except in the manner and to the extent hereln stated

. all of the city of _Marcellys , state Of -NY. C eaca rndr\ndua yrflherebe more than ong named its troe and lawful attorney |n‘tact to make, execute, seal, acknowledge
"~ and daliver, for and on its bahalf as surety and as its act and-deed; any and all undertakings, bonds; recognizances ang other surety obligations; in pursuancs of these presents and shall .=
. “he as bindlng upon the Companzes as |f they have been duly srgned by the presrdent aed attested by the secretary of lhe Companres in therr own proper persons o S

is a corporation duly organized under the (aws of the State of Indiana (herein collectively called the “Companies”). pursuant to and by authority herein set forth, does hereby name constrtute
“and appoint, Courtney P Spraque Edward dJ. Fteaqan Francrs A Lowther Monrque Laroohe Natatre M erenez Ftobert B Parrrsh o

Not valid for mortgage, note, loan, tetter of credit,

currency rate, interest rate or residual value guarantees.

theretothrs st dayof March 2016

' Authorization - By unanimous consent of the Company 5 Board of Crrectors the Company consents that facsmrle or mechanrcally reproduced srgnature of any a55|stant secretary of the o .
© . Canapany, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attomey |ssued by the Company in oonnectron wrth surety bongs, shall be val:d aod blndrng upon the Company wrth RO
-.the same force and effect as though manually affi xed - S doml e i :

|, Gregory W. Davenport the undersrgned Assrstant Sec{alary, of Amencan Fire and Casualty Company, The Ohio Casuaty insurance Cornpany, i;berty Mutual Insurance Company and ;
“West American Insurance Company do hereby certify that the original power of attorney ot wrech the toregorng isa full true and correct copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said .

: -+ - Companies, is in full force and effect and has notheenyevoked, o i L SRR .
L ._iN TESTlMONYWHEREOF lhave nereunto set my hand and aff xed the seals of sard Companres rhrswday of M@r( h '_ ' o ,_20 lU L U

CLMS_ 12873 122043 -

- Certificate of Designation - The Presrdent ofthe Company, actrng pursuant tothe Bylaws of the Company authorrzes Davld M Carey Assrstant Secretary o appornl such attomeys in- |
. fact as may be necessary to act.on behalf ot the Company to make. execute seal, acknowledge and delrver a8 surety any and all undertakmgs bonds reccgnizaeces and other surety
S obi igations. : I : . ‘ _ . R T

"

Certrf Tcate No 7278353

Amerrcan Frre and Casualty Company i.rberty Mutuat lnsurance Company : o
The tho_Casual_ty tnsurance C_omp_any: o ._Wes_t_Amencan lnsu_ranc_e Company .
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS That Amerrcan Frre & Casualty Company and The Ohio Casual ty Insurance Company are corporatrons drzly orgamzed under lhe Iaws of
the State of New Hampshirs, that Liberty Mutuat Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Massachusetts, and West American Insurance Company

IN W!TNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney nas been subscnbed by an authorrzed oft’ cer or offcral of the Companies and tne corporate seais of the Cornpanres have been afr xed

: 'Amerrcan Fire and Casualty Company
. The Ohic Casuatty insurance Company
~ Liberly Mutual Insurance Company

.West merrcan Insurance Compaey
ey BN

" David M. Car‘ey._/Assrst_ant Secrefary [t

STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA .~ ‘ss . =
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY - .. R RIS SRR e A E R BRI _ e T
Onthis 15t ‘dayof March -~ . 2016 “before me personally appeared David M. Carey, who acknowledged himseif to be the Assistant Secretary of American Fire. and
Casualty Company, Liberty Mutual insurance Company, ‘The Ohio Casualty Insurange Company, and West American Insurance Company, and that he, as such, being autnonzed 80 to do,
-execute the foregoing mstrument for lne purposes therern contarned by srgnrng on benalf of the corporatrons by himself as a duly authonzed offi icer, T : :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF | have hereunto subscnbed my name and aﬁ“xed my notanai seal at Pt ymoutn Meeting, Pennsyivanla on the day and year fi rst above wntten -' '
. : : " COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA -

LU0 Notarial Seal L y‘\ - / é g {
Teresa Pasteiia Notary Public ", By:

Piymouih Twp., Montgomery Gounty - 2.0 Teresa Pastella, Notary Public -2
.1 My Commission Expires March 28, 2017 T ’_' i S

Memher PennsyivamaAssocratron of Notanes .

00 am and 4:30 pm EST on any business day.

Thrs Power ofAttorney is made and execuled pursuant toand by authorlty of lhe foflowing By- -laws and Authonzatrons ofArnerlcan Firg and Casualty Cornpany, The Ohro Casualty Insuranoe
Company, Liberty Mutual insurance Company, and West Amencan lnsurance Company whrch resolutroes are now |n full force and effect readrng as follows:

.

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS - Section 12. Power of Attornay. Any off cerorother offiial of the Corporatron authorrzed for that purpose in wntrng by the Chairman or the Presroent and subject
to such limitation as the Chairman or the President may prescribe, shall appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Corporation to make, execute, seal,
acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, boads, recognizances and other surety obligations. Such attarneys-in-fact, subject to the limitations set forth in their respective
pawers of attorney, shall have full power to bind the Corporation by their signature and execution of any such instruments and to attach thereto the seal of the Corporation. When so |*
exacuted, such instruments shafl be as binding as if signed by the President and attested fo by the Secretary. Any power or autharity granted to any representative or attorney- rn~fact under -
the provisicns of this articie may be revoked at any time by the Board, the Chairman, the President or by the off icer or officers granting such power o autharity. : R

'ty of this’ Power of Attom'ey call

To confrrm the validi
1-610-832-8240 hetween 9

ARTICLE Xl - Execution of Contracts — SECTION 5. Sursty Bonds and Undertakings. Any officer of the Company authorized for that purpose in writing by the chairman or lhe presrdent
and subject to such limilations as the chairman or the president may prescribe, shali appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to actin hehaif of the Company io make, execute, |,
seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bends, recognizances and ofter surety cbligations. Such attorneys-in-fact subject to the limitations set forth in their
respective powers of atiorney, shall have full power to bind the Company by their signature and execution of any such mstruments and to attach thereto the seal of tize Company When 50
execoted such instruments shall be as brndrng as |f srgned by the presrdent and attested by the secretary - Lo .

-By: . ! Lo
oo -Gregory W. Davenport, Assistant Secretary . 7

a20i500 -




Liberty
Mutual.
SURETY
Assets
Cash and Bank Deposits......ococmenmevrmnonnn $744,221,142
*Bonds ~— 1.8 GOVEINMENt ....cocvervemrerersvsiorenneenns 1,718,117,704
*Other BOnds.....ovevreerecrernmerorimnsnssnsrsisnsnes 11,205,872,087
EGLOCKS cvvvererrveresmrssnseroncesemseresssi s sbrnasssrsesssasssnse 9,533,437,819
Real ESIALE....covcreiveecsinesensessenernssensinnessmecrenrmnenss 271,742,849
Agents’ Balances or Uncollected Premiums........... 4,150,041,316
Accrued Interest and Rents...oovnnicvniiiniiiinnnns 129,261,358
Other Admitted ASSES.....overerreeereeeeromereenenonsrans 14,896,464,303
Total Admitted Assets $42,655,158,668

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENT — DECEMBER 31, 2014

Liabilities
Unearned PremiimS. ..o eoreron e resresssensnrensnenneeses $0,288,178,795
Reserve for Claims and Ciaims Expense ................ 16,879,324,618
Funds Held Under Reinsurance Treaties............c.o 211,983,009
Reserve for Dividends to Policyholders..........cceeu 1,246,547
Additional Statutory Reserve ..o 40,877,587

Reserve for Commissions, Taxes and

Other Liahilities ....oovcrieieerereresissemsrsssessneneene 2,004,248,124

TOtAlcvecrerrirmnessasssrensesssensnsrruseassnsnsreansaseassensusis $26,085,858,680
Special Surplus Funds.......ooveenn. $53,954,363
Capital Stock.....coceccnerrievnveenn 10,000,000
Paid in Surplus.....cooceervueecvennnnn. 8,829,117,542
Unassigned Surplus.......coceeeeenie. 7,676,228,083
Surplus to Policyholders .....nicicnenicns 16,569.299,988
Total Liabilities and Surplus . cevvarerronsies $42,655,158,668

* Bonds are stated at amortized or investment value; Stocks at Association Market Values.
The foregoing financial information is taken from Liberty Mutual Insurance Company’s financial
staternent filed with the state of Massachusetts Department of Insurance.

I, TIM MIKOLAJEWSK], Assistant Secretary of Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, and
correct statement of the Assets and Liabilities of said Corporation, as of December 31, 2014, to the best of my knowledge and belief.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Corporation at Seattle, Washington, this 20th day of

March, 2015.

$-1262LMiCla 315

L

TR legornal

Assistant Secretary




AGENDA
ITEM #6

Review/Approval —June 9, 2016 Special Town
Meeting Warrant

Associated backup materials attached:
e June 9, 2016 Special Town Meeting Warrant

NOTE: PLEASE VOTE RECOMMENDATION
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TOWN OF MEDWAY
WARRANT FOR JUNE 9, 2016
SPECIAL TOWN MEETING

NORFOLK ss:
To either of the Constables of the Town of Medway
GREETINGS:

In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, you are hereby required to notify and warn the
inhabitants of said Town who are qualified to vote in Town affairs to meet at the Medway High School, 83
Summer Street, on Thursday, June 9, 2016 at 7:00 PM, then and there to act on the following articles:

ARTICLE 1: (Synthetic Turf and Tire Derived Materials Moratorium)

To determine whether the Town of Medway will adopt a moratorium on the engineering, planning,
construction or installation of any synthetic turf (monofilament carpet with infill), any surface covering of
loose fill and playground pour-in-place surface covering made from tire derived material on any land, of
any size, owned by the town for a three-year time period starting on June 1, 2016 and ending on June 1,
2019: or take any other action relative thereto.

CITIZEN PETITION
BOARD OF SELECTMEN RECOMMENDATION:

FINCOM RECOMMENDATION:

ARTICLE 2: (CPA Funds: Choate Park and Other Recreation Improvements)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, borrow, and/or transfer from Community
Preservation Funds a sum of money not to exceed $450,000 for the purpose of funding design and
engineering services and the preparation of public bid documents for the purpose of making
improvements, including accessibility enhancements, to recreational facilities at Choate Park, the
Medway Middle School, Cassidy Fields, and Oakland Park, and for the payment of all other costs
incidental and related thereto, and to authorize the Board of Selectmen and Town officers to take all
related actions necessary or appropriate to carry out this article, or act in any manner relating thereto.

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
BOARD OF SELECTMEN RECOMMENDATION:

FINCOM RECOMMENDATION:
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And you are hereby directed to serve this warrant by posting printed attested copies thereof at two locations
in each precinct at least FOURTEEN days before the day of said meeting. Hereof fail not and make due
return of this warrant with your doings thereon to the Clerk of said Town at or before the time of said
meeting.

Given under our hands in Medway, this 16" day of May 2016.

A TRUE COPY:

SELECTMEN OF THE TOWN OF MEDWAY

John Foresto, Chairman

Maryjane White, Vice Chairman

Richard D’Innocenzo, Clerk

Dennis Crowley, Member

Glenn Trindade, Member

ATTEST:

Paul Trufant, Constable



AGENDA
ITEM #/

Approval — Host Community Agreement with
COMMCAN, INC.

Associated backup materials attached:
e Host Community Agreement

Proposed Motion: | move that the Board authorize the Chairman to
execute the host community agreement with COMMCAN Inc., as
presented.



COMMCAN, INC.

Host Community Agreement
Reqgistered Marijuana Dispensary - Cultivation & Processing Facility
Medway, Massachusetts

This Host Community Benefit Agreement for a Registered Marijuana Dispensary cultivation and
processing facility, ("RMD") is entered into this__ day of , 2016 by and between
CommcCan, Inc. a Massachusetts not-for-profit corporation formed under MGL ch.180 et seq. with a
principal office address of 730 Main Street, Millis, Massachusetts 02054 ("OPERATOR”) and the Town
of Medway, a Massachusetts municipal corporation with a principal address of 155 Village Street,
Medway, Massachusetts 02053 (“TOWN?”). The obligations of OPERATOR and the TOWN recited
herein are specifically contingent upon OPERATOR obtaining a Final Certificate of Registration for
operation of a RMD in the TOWN from the Department of Public Health (“DPH”) and upon
OPERATOR obtaining municipal approvals for construction and operation of the RMD cultivation and
processing facility from the TOWN.

WHEREAS, OPERATOR has submitted three (3) applications to operate RMDs in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, consisting of one (1) cultivation facility in Medway and three (3) retail locations in
communities other than Medway;

WHEREAS, OPERATOR intends to locate a RMD cultivation and processing facility at 2 Marc Road,
Medway, in accordance with regulations issued by the DPH and zoning by-laws issued by the TOWN;

WHEREAS, OPERATOR has obtained a letter of support from the TOWN for the siting and operation of
a RMD cultivation and processing facility in the TOWN;

WHEREAS, OPERATOR intends to provide certain benefits to the TOWN in the event that OPERATOR
obtains a Final Certificate of Registration to operate a RMD cultivation and processing facility in the
TOWN and has received all state and local approvals, and begins providing marijuana for medical use to
patients, their caregivers, the public, or other RMDs:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above, OPERATOR offers the TOWN and the TOWN
accepts this Host Community Agreement in accordance with MGL ch.44 853A:

1. Inthe event that OPERATOR obtains a Final Certificate of Registration from DPH for the
operation of a RMD cultivation and processing facility in the TOWN and receives any and all
necessary and required permits and licenses issuable by the TOWN, which said permits and/or
licenses allow OPERATOR to locate, occupy and operate the RMD cultivation and processing
facility in the TOWN, then OPERATOR agrees to provide the TOWN with the following
benefits:

a. Self-contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) devices for the fire department, with a total
value of two hundred sixty-three thousand two-hundred dollars ($263,200). This gift will
be provided in four (4) equal annual installments of sixty-five thousand eight hundred
($65,800), commencing on August 1, 2017 (“Payment Commencement Date”), with the
following three (3) payments due on or before that anniversary date;

b. A Youth Activity Program through the Medway Public Library funding at the rate of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000) per year, with such gift commencing on February 1, 2018, and
provided annually thereafter for the duration of this Agreement;

TOWN OF MEDWAY — COMMCAN, INC | HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT v.4.12.16.1 |1 |Page



c. School Department health and substance abuse prevention curriculum funding at the rate
of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per year, with such gift commencing on February 1,
2018, and provided annually thereafter for the duration of this Agreement; and

d. Department of Public Services Department of Transportation (“DPS DOT”) Drug Testing
Program Funding at the rate of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) per year, with such gift
commencing on February 1, 2018, and provided annually thereafter for the duration of
this Agreement.

2. In addition to the items identified above in Paragraphs 1 (a)-(d), OPERATOR shall provide an
annual financial contribution of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) to the Town for any
municipal purpose, provided that such payments shall commence on February 1, 2018, and
shall continue on an annual basis thereafter, with each annual gift to be made on or before
February 1% of each year for the duration of this agreement.

3. Notwithstanding the gifts identified above in Paragraphs 1 and 2, at all times during the term of
this Agreement, real property, owned or operated by OPERATOR shall be treated as taxable,
and all applicable real estate and personal property and excise taxes for that property shall be
paid either directly by OPERATOR or by its landlord. OPERATOR shall not challenge the
taxability of such property and shall not submit an application for any statutory exemption from
such taxes, except to ensure that the property is assessed at the fair cash value of such property
as described in M.G.L. c. 59 §38.

4. Notwithstanding Paragraph 3 above: (a) if real and/or personal property owned or operated by
OPERATOR is determined to be exempt for taxation or partially exempt, or (b) if the value of
such property is abated with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would
otherwise be paid if assessed at the fair cash value of such property as described in M.G.L. c.
59 8§38, then OPERATOR shall pay to the TOWN an amount which when added to the taxes, if
any, paid on such property, shall be equal to the taxes which would have been payable on such
property at fair cash value and at the otherwise applicable tax rate, if there had been no
abatement or exemption. The payment described in this Paragraph 4 shall be in addition to the
payments made by OPERATOR under Paragraphs 1(a)-(d) and 2 of this Agreement.

5. In the event that OPERATOR becomes eligible for status as a charitable organization and a
related decrease or elimination of real property taxes, and tax revenue from OPERATOR’s
cultivation and processing facility located in the TOWN is reduced or eliminated, OPERATOR
will continue to make the assessed, fair cash value tax payment directly to the TOWN as an
additional payment under this Agreement.

6. If the TOWN receives other payments from OPERATOR (other than additional voluntary
payments made by OPERATOR including property taxes under Paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 above)
or from the Department of Revenue or any other source, the funds for which have been
collected by assessment against OPERATOR, including but not limited to taxes imposed by an
act of the Massachusetts Legislature, or a mandate from the TOWN for said payments, the
amounts due from OPERATOR to the TOWN under Paragraphs 1(a)-(d) and 2 this Agreement
shall be reduced by the amount of such other payments.
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7.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

OPERATOR will endeavor to hire local, qualified employees to the extent consistent with law
and with the demands of OPERATOR’s business. OPERATOR will also endeavor in a good
faith, legal and non-discriminatory manner to use local vendors and suppliers where possible.

OPERATOR shall coordinate with the Medway Police Department in the development and
implementation of required security measures, under 105 CMR 725.110 and otherwise,
including in determining the placement of exterior security cameras. OPERATOR will maintain
a cooperative relationship with the Medway Police Department, including but not limited to
periodic meetings to review operational concerns and communication to Medway Police
Department of any suspicious activities on the site.

It shall be the responsibility of the OPERATOR, as a condition in the special permit process
and herein, to make repairs and improvements to Marc Road, included but not limited to
drainage, surface, lighting, and safety improvements, as identified as necessary by the Town’s
consulting engineer and Department of Public Services.

The purpose of this Agreement is to assist the TOWN in addressing any public health, safety
and other effects or impacts the RMD cultivation and processing facility may have on the
TOWN. The TOWN shall use the above-referenced payments in its sole discretion consistent
with the purpose of this Agreement, which may include allocating a portion of said payments
for community wellness programs, educational programs, parks and recreation, public safety,
and other efforts and initiatives for the support of the health of the citizens of the TOWN.
However, the TOWN is under no obligation to use the foregoing payments in any particular
manner.

The obligations of OPERATOR and the TOWN recited herein are contingent upon the issuance
of a Final Certificate of Registration by the DPH to OPERATOR to operate a RMD cultivation
and processing facility in the TOWN, and OPERATOR conducting operations in TOWN.

This Agreement shall terminate at the time that any of the following occurs: the TOWN
notifies OPERATOR of the TOWN’s termination of this Agreement; the TOWN notifies
OPERATOR of the TOWN’s termination of this Agreement for CAUSE (to be defined);
OPERATOR ceases to operate a RMD cultivation and processing facility in the TOWN;
OPERATOR ceases to operate a RMD in the Commonwealth. CAUSE shall be defined as if
OPERATOR violates any laws of the Commonwealth with respect to the operation of a RMD,
and such violation remains uncured for sixty (60) days; or if OPERATOR fails to make
payments to the TOWN as required under this Agreement, and such failure remains uncured for
sixty (60) days.

This Agreement is binding upon the parties hereto, their successors, assigns and legal
representatives. OPERATOR shall not assign, sublet or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in
whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the Town, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

OPERATOR shall comply with all laws, rules, regulations and orders applicable to the work
provided pursuant to this Agreement, such provisions being incorporated herein by reference,
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

and shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary licenses, permits, and approvals required for
the performance of such work.

Should TOWN enter into an agreement with any other RMD for siting in TOWN at material
terms more favorable to that RMD than the terms of this Agreement are to OPERATOR,
specifically requiring cash payments or gifts which are less on an annual basis than those
described in this Agreement in Paragraphs 1(a)-(d) and 2, and not considering other terms of
this Agreement, the OPERATOR shall have the opportunity to request that this agreement be
reopened to discuss the specific term or terms in question for the purpose of providing a level
playing field.

Any and all notices, or other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall
be in writing and delivered postage prepaid mail, return receipt requested; by hand; by
registered or certified mail; or by other reputable delivery services, to the Parties at the
addresses set forth on the first page of this Agreement or furnished from time to time in writing
hereafter by one party to the other party. Any such notices or correspondence shall be deemed
given when so delivered by hand, if so mailed, when deposited with the USPS or, if sent by
private overnight or other delivery service, when deposited with such delivery service.

If any term or condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall to any extent be held
invalid, illegal or unenforceable, then the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be deemed affected thereby unless one or both
of the Parties would be substantially or materially prejudiced.

This Agreement, including all documents incorporated therein by reference, constitutes the
entire integrated agreement between the parties with respect to the matters described. This
Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, negotiation and representations, either written or
oral and it shall not be modified or amended except by a written document executed by the
Parties hereto.

This Agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years, and shall automatically be reopened for
negotiations on the first day of the fourth (4th) year after the Payment Commencement Date
(August 1, 2017) to discuss renewal possibilities. The Parties agree that if they are unable to
reach an agreement on a successor Host Community Agreement, the terms of this Agreement
shall continue for two (2) additional years.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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20. In the event that the non-medical use of marijuana is authorized under the laws of the
Commonwealth, and OPERATOR cultivates marijuana at its facility in TOWN, that is sold for
non-medical purposes, OPERATOR agrees to gift to the TOWN annually on August 1
payments in an amount of one percent (1%) of OPERATOR’s gross revenues generated by the
OPERATOR’s production of marijuana that is sold for non-medical use, subtracted by
payments made under Paragraphs 1(b)-(d) and 2 of this Agreement, with a maximum of
$155,000.00 per year, on an annual basis, where such amount of $155,000.00 shall include the
payments under Paragraphs 1(b)-(d) and 2.

Agreed to by CommcCan, Inc. and the Town of Medway, Massachusetts as of the __ day of :
2016.

FOR THE TOWN OF MEDWAY, ITS
BOARD OF SELECTMEN:

John Foresto

Maryjane White

Richard D'Innocenzo

Glenn Trindade

Dennis Crowley

FOR OPERATOR COMMCAN, INC, ITS
PRESIDENT:

Ellen Rosenfeld
President, CommCan, Inc.

TREASURER:

Treasurer, ComCan, Inc.
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AGENDA
ITEM #8

Execution of PILOT Agreement

Associated backup materials attached:
e PILOT Agreement

Proposed motion: | move that the Board execute the PILOT agreement
as authorized by Annual Town Meeting.
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PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES AGREEMENT

This Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement (“PILOT”) is made as of the  day of
[month], 2016, by and between the Town of Medway, a municipal corporation and body politic
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “Town”’), and Exelon West Medway Il, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“Exelon”) having offices at 300 Exelon Way, Kennett
Square, Pennsylvania 19348, each individually a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, an affiliate of Exelon owns 94z acres of real property located in the Town
as depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Site”);

WHEREAS, an affiliate of Exelon owns existing real and personal property comprised of
six pairs of Rolls Royce Avon combustion turbines and associated appurtenances with a total
capacity of 173+ megawatts (“MW”) of energy (the “Existing Facility”) on the Site;

WHEREAS, Exelon is developing two new dual fueled generating units capable of
producing 200+ MW of energy (the “New Facility”) on the Site;

WHEREAS, Exelon will be subject to certain local taxes in connection with its
ownership of the real and personal property related to the New Facility;

WHEREAS, Exelon and the Town agree that having an accurate projection of their
respective property tax expenses and revenues with respect to the New Facility is essential to the
development of the New Facility, provides long-term revenue certainty for the Town and is in
their mutual best interests;

WHEREAS, G.L. c. 59 8§38H authorizes the Town to enter into an agreement for a
negotiated payment in lieu of taxes imposed on real and personal property;

WHEREAS, Exelon and the Town acknowledge that a comprehensive agreement for
payments in lieu of taxes under the authority of G.L. c. 59, §38H fixing and maintaining
mutually acceptable payments based on reasonable and accurate fair cash values for all real and
personal property associated with the New Facility for twenty (20) years commencing with
commercial operations of the New Facility is appropriate and serves their respective interests;
and

WHEREAS, Exelon and the Town have reached this PILOT as a result of good faith
negotiations so that Exelon’s payments to the Town shall be the equivalent of the property tax
obligations which would otherwise be owed to the Town by Exelon during the term of this
PILOT based on full and fair cash valuation.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained
herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby
are acknowledged, the Parties do hereby covenant and agree as follows:



1. Property to be Taxed. The real and personal property that comprises the New
Facility to be owned by Exelon which shall be taxed subject to the terms of this PILOT is
described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as the New Facility.
The New Facility also shall include any material additions, improvements, repairs, replacements,
modifications or other changes to the New Facility certified pursuant to Section 5 which occur
after the execution of this PILOT. This PILOT covers all real and personal property taxes
otherwise due for the New Facility but does not affect any payments, other than real and personal
property taxes, owed by Exelon to the Town, including, but not limited to, payments due under
the Host Community Agreement between the Town and Exelon dated as of even date herewith
(the “HCA”), vehicle excise taxes, and amounts for customary services provided by the Town to
Exelon and the New Facility such as water and sewer services.

The Existing Facility and the remainder of the Site will continue to be assessed and taxed
pursuant to G.L. c. 59 and is not subject to this PILOT. Moreover, nothing contained in this
PILOT, including, without limitation, any exhibits thereto, shall relieve Exelon, its agents or
assigns, nor any other entity leasing or otherwise occupying existing Exelon properties in the
Town from any payment obligations for any real or personal property related to the Existing
Facility or on any property otherwise owned by Exelon, including, without limitation, all
equipment and utilities appurtenant thereto and thereon. Items being assessed by the Town
and/or the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and subject to real and/or personal property tax
obligations shall continue to be subject to the same assessment and payment mechanisms in
effect as of October 14, 2015.

2. Term. This PILOT shall govern the taxation of the New Facility for twenty (20)
years commencing in the year the New Facility commences commercial operations. During the
construction period and prior to Commercial Operation Date, no payments will be required with
respect to the work in progress. “Commercial Operation Date” or “COD” shall mean the date of
initial commercial operation of the New Facility. Regular property tax payments will continue to
be due on the Existing Facility.

For the purposes of this PILOT, each fiscal year shall begin on July 1 and shall end on
June 30 of the following calendar year. By way of example, fiscal year 2016 means July 1, 2015
- June 30, 2016.

The initial payment hereunder shall be due in full within thirty (30) days of the sooner of
the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the New Facility by the Town’s Building
Commissioner or December 31, 2017. Thereafter, payments shall be made on a quarterly basis.

This PILOT may sooner terminate pursuant to Sections 7 and 13. Upon termination, the
Town shall assess the New Facility in the normal course pursuant to G.L. c. 59.

After July 1 of the eighteenth (18™) year of this PILOT, but on or before June of the
following year, the Town may notify Exelon if it desires to terminate this PILOT effective on
June 30, 2038. In the event the Town exercises its rights under this Section, the Parties shall
negotiate in good faith in an effort to agree upon a successor agreement to take effect at the
conclusion of the twenty (20) year term. In the event the Parties are unable to reach agreement



on a successor agreement, the New Facility shall be taxed on an ad valorem basis pursuant to
G.L.c.59.

3. PILOT Payments. The Parties agree that the respective PILOT Payments
(“PILOT Payments”) shall be the amounts listed below for each of the years included in the term
of this PILOT in lieu of paying any other real or personal property taxes with respect to the New
Facility.




YEAR

QUARTER

VALUE

NEW PLANT PILOT PILOT PAYMENT
ANNUAL TOTAL

QUARTERLY PILOT
PAYMENT
AMOUNTS

CPA PAYMENT
AMOUNT
(3% of PILOT
Payment) (Due
September 1
Annually)

1

$210,000,000.00

$3,830,400.00

$114,912.00

B WN R

$208,950,000.00

$3,811,248.00

$952,812.00
$952,812.00
$952,812.00
$952,812.00

$114,337.44

A WN R

$207,905,250.00

$3,792,191.76

$948,047.94
$948,047.94
$948,047.94
$948,047.94

$113,765.75

A WN R

$206,865,723.75

$3,773,230.80

$943,307.70
$943,307.70
$943,307.70
$943,307.70

$113,196.92

B WN R

$205,831,395.13

$3,754,364.65

$938,591.16
$938,591.16
$938,591.16
$938,591.16

$112,630.94

A WN R

$204,802,238.16

$3,735,592.82

$933,898.21
$933,898.21
$933,898.21
$933,898.21

$112,067.78

A WN R

$203,778,226.96

$3,716,914.86

$929,228.71
$929,228.71
$929,228.71
$929,228.71

$111,507.45

$202,759,335.83

$3,698,330.29

$924,582.57
$924,582.57
$924,582.57
$924,582.57

$110,949.91

A WN R

$201,745,539.15

$3,679,838.63

$919,959.66
$919,959.66
$919,959.66
$919,959.66

$110,395.16

10

B WN R

$200,736,811.46

$3,661,439.44

$915,359.86
$915,359.86
$915,359.86
$915,359.86

$109,843.18

11

A WN R

$199,733,127.40

$3,643,132.24

$910,783.06
$910,783.06
$910,783.06
$910,783.06

$109,293.97




12

A WN R

$198,734,461.76

$3,624,916.58

$906,229.15
$906,229.15
$906,229.15
$906,229.15

$108,747.50

13

A WN R

$197,740,789.45

$3,606,792.00

$901,698.00
$901,698.00
$901,698.00
$901,698.00

$108,203.76

14

A WN R

$196,752,085.50

$3,588,758.04

$897,189.51
$897,189.51
$897,189.51
$897,189.51

$107,662.74

15

A WN R

$195,768,325.08

$3,570,814.25

$892,703.56
$892,703.56
$892,703.56
$892,703.56

$107,124.43

16

A WN R

$194,789,483.45

$3,552,960.18

$888,240.04
$888,240.04
$888,240.04
$888,240.04

$106,588.81

17

A WN R

$193,815,536.03

$3,535,195.38

$883,798.84
$883,798.84
$883,798.84
$883,798.84

$106,055.86

18

A WN R

$192,846,458.35

$3,517,519.40

$879,379.85
$879,379.85
$879,379.85
$879,379.85

$105,525.58

19

A WN R

$191,882,226.06

$3,499,931.80

$874,982.95
$874,982.95
$874,982.95
$874,982.95

$104,997.95

20

B WN R

$190,922,814.93

$3,482,432.14

$870,608.04
$870,608.04
$870,608.04
$870,608.04

$104,472.96

Sum of PILOT and CPA Payments

$73,076,003.27

$2,192,280.10
$75,268,283.37




Such amounts shall be paid on a quarterly basis and shall be delivered to Town of
Medway Collector of Taxes, 155 Village Street, Medway, MA 02053. Such amounts shall be
paid each year in accordance with the following schedule: 1st quarter due August 1%; 2nd quarter
due November 1°: 3rd quarter due February 1%; 4th quarter due May 1%. Should any due date
fall on a weekend or holiday, payment shall be due the first business day following such date.

4. Community Preservation Act Payments. The Parties agree that in addition to the
PILOT Payments provided for herein, the Town shall be entitled to receive an additional PILOT
Payment of three percent (3%) of each PILOT Payment in order to compensate the Town for
Community Preservation Act payments it is entitled to receive under the Town bylaws and
Massachusetts law. Such payment shall be paid annually on or before September 1%

5. Certifications. Exelon shall send a certification to the Town within ten (10) days
of the Commercial Operation Date notifying the Town of such date. Thereafter, Exelon shall
submit to the Town no later than the March 1* preceding the beginning of each fiscal year
covered by this PILOT an annual certification which describes any material additions,
improvements, repairs, replacements, modifications, retirements or other changes that have
occurred since the final completion of the New Facility or since Exelon’s last annual
certification, as applicable, in accordance with G.L. c. 59, §29. In each annual certification,
Exelon shall designate a representative who is available to answer any questions that the Town
may have regarding the information that was provided in such annual certification.

6. Adjustments. If, during the term of this PILOT, (i) the New Facility is physically
unable to operate for a period of eighteen (18) consecutive months following COD due to
casualty or Force Majeure as defined below; (ii) there is any regulatory or legal proceeding or
government investigation that results in an unfavorable judgment, order, decree, stipulation or
injunction that prevents Exelon from constructing or operating the New Facility; or (iii) the New
Facility is taken out of service permanently, Exelon may elect to terminate this PILOT.

In the event that the annual certification submitted in accordance with Section 5 of this
PILOT indicates that there have been material capital improvements to the New Facility that
materially increase its nameplate capacity above 200 MW, ,then, within thirty (30) days of
receipt of each annual certification, the Town’s Principal Assessor and Exelon shall agree upon a
revised future payment schedule for the New Facility reflecting a pro rata increase in such
payments. The revised PILOT Payment schedule shall take effect for the subsequent fiscal year.
In the event that the parties are unable to agree upon a revised payment schedule within such
thirty (30) day period, the Parties shall resolve the dispute in accordance with Section 22 below.
In the event that the dispute resolution process set forth in Section 22 is initiated, the Town shall
have a limited right to audit and inspect Exelon’s records during the informal negotiation stage
of the process, as and to the extent provided in G.L. ¢. 59. The scope of such audits shall be
limited to reviewing information that is reasonably necessary to ascertain the accuracy of the
information provided or omitted on Exelon’s most recent annual certification. Such
examinations shall be made upon not less than seven (7) days’ prior notice during normal
business hours at the New Facility and in such manner as to not unreasonably interfere with
Exelon’s normal business activities. If such records are not kept at the New Facility, Exelon
shall deliver (at its sole expense) copies of such records to the office of the Town’s Principal
Assessor. Any information provided to the Town as part of an audit shall be treated as



confidential. In the event the Town requests documents or information that Exelon determines is
proprietary, upon request by Exelon, the Parties will enter into a commercially reasonable
confidentiality agreement in order to limit disclosure of such information.

In the event that the Town shall vote pursuant to G.L. c. 59, §21C et seq. to increase local
property taxes for the purpose of a general override, a debt exclusion override or a capital
exclusion override, the amounts due under this PILOT shall be adjusted upward proportionally to
the same extent as the percentage to value increases born by taxpayers in the Town. This
increase(s) shall continue for the duration of the term approved by the Town.

For the purpose of this PILOT, Force Majeure shall means any cause not within the reasonable
control of Exelon which precludes it from carrying out, in whole or in part, its obligations under
this PILOT, including, but not limited to, Acts of God; winds; hurricanes; tornadoes; extreme
weather; fires; epidemics; landslides; earthquakes; floods; other natural catastrophes; strikes;
lock-outs or other industrial disturbances; acts of public enemies; acts, failures to act or orders of
any kind of any governmental authority acting in its regulatory or judicial capacity;
insurrections; military action; war, whether or not it is declared; sabotage; riots; civil
disturbances or explosions. Nothing in this provision is intended to excuse Exelon from
performing due to any governmental act, failure to act, or order, where it was reasonably within
Exelon’s power to prevent such act, failure to act, or order. Notwithstanding anything in the
PILOT to the contrary, Force Majeure shall not mean:

@) Customary inclement weather (in contrast to extreme weather) affecting
construction, operation, or decommissioning of the New Facility.

(b) Unavailability of equipment, repairs or parts for the New Facility, except to the
extent due to a qualifying event of Force Majeure (whether such event affects
Exelon directly or any supplier, manufacturer, shipper or warehouseman).

(© Any nonpayment under this PILOT.
(d) Economic hardship of Exelon.
7. Failure to Make Timely Payments; Right to Cure. In accordance with G.L. c. 59,

857, the Town may assess penalties for late payments of PILOT Payments due under the
provisions of this PILOT. The Town expressly reserves all rights available to it respecting the
collection of such PILOT Payments. In the event a payment is not timely received by the Town,
the Town shall issue a notice of default to Exelon and Exelon shall have thirty (30) days (the
“Cure Period”; the Cure Period is not intended to modify the timing or amount of any penalties
or interest that accrue under G.L. c. 59, 857, which shall be in addition to the penalty set forth
below) from receipt of such notice within which to cure such default. If Exelon fails to timely
cure the default, then within thirty (30) days after the end of the Cure Period, and at its sole
option, the Town may declare this PILOT null and void, and the New Facility shall be taxed on
an ad valorem basis pursuant to G.L. c¢. 59. In addition, in the event of payment default that is
uncured at the end of the Cure Period and that is not the subject of a good faith dispute, Exelon



shall pay a late fee of one thousand dollars ($1,000) per day for each day that any payment under
this PILOT is due, provided, however, that no more than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000)
shall be due and owing for each instance of late payment or nonpayment. Interest shall also
accrue on all late payments in accordance with G.L. c. 59, 857.

8. Mutual Benefits. The Parties acknowledge that this PILOT is the result of good
faith negotiations between the Parties and extensive efforts to determine the fair cash value of the
New Facility and is fair and beneficial to them because it resolves all issues regarding taxation of
the New Facility, avoiding substantial litigation cost and uncertainty. The Town acknowledges
that this PILOT is beneficial to it because it will result in steady, predictable, and reasonable
PILOT Payments from the New Facility. Exelon acknowledges that this PILOT is beneficial to
it because it provides predictability and certainty with respect to taxation of the New Facility.

9. HCA. The obligations under this PILOT are completely severable from the
obligations of the Parties under the HCA. A default under this PILOT shall not be considered a
cross-default under the HCA. A default under the HCA shall not be considered a default under
this PILOT.

10. No Precedent. This PILOT is entered into in good faith to resolve future disputes
and to achieve predictability and economic stability for both Parties by establishing a schedule of
PILOT Payments based on reasonable, accurate, and reliable fair cash values for the New
Facility. Accordingly, Exelon and the Town agree that neither Party shall seek to use the PILOT
Payments agreed to under this PILOT in any future proceedings regarding the value of the New
Facility in the Town (except for disputes related to this PILOT) or in any other proceeding
regarding the value of any other Exelon property, including the Existing Facility.

11.  Advice of Counsel. The Parties have entered into this PILOT only after full and
due consideration thereof and with the advice of their counsel and of their independent
consultants.

12.  Conditions Precedent. The obligations of the Parties under this PILOT are
conditioned on (i) approval of this PILOT by the Town acting by Town meeting; (ii) the Town
promptly submitting this PILOT to the Massachusetts Department of Revenue (“DOR”) and
DOR approving this PILOT in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt; and (iii) the
achievement of the Commercial Operation Date. In the event that DOR objects to this PILOT,
this PILOT shall become null and void and of no further effect unless otherwise agreed by the
Parties in writing.

13. Change in Law.

€)) Exelon and the Town hereby stipulate and agree that no portion of this PILOT
shall be enforceable, and the PILOT shall terminate if a court of competent jurisdiction or a
Massachusetts State agency having applicable jurisdiction has determined or declared any
material portion of this PILOT to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, such determination or
declaration materially alters the economic benefits and burdens of the Parties, and such
determination or declaration is not subject to further appeal by either Party.



(b) Exelon and the Town hereby stipulate and agree that no portion of this PILOT
shall be enforceable, and the PILOT shall terminate if the Massachusetts General Court abolishes
an ad valorem tax on property used for the production of electricity.

(© In the event that the Massachusetts General Court enacts another means of
taxation or assessment in addition to ad valorem taxation applicable to the New Facility during
the term of the PILOT, the PILOT Payments due under the PILOT shall be reduced each year by
the amount of such taxes or assessments actually paid by Exelon.

14. Renegotiation Obligations. Exelon and the Town agree that in the event this
PILOT terminates pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of this PILOT, and that such event
does not occur through the direct fault of either Party, that the Parties will in good faith attempt
to negotiate a new agreement which will seek to accomplish and implement the objectives and
purposes of this PILOT for the same term as is addressed by this PILOT.

15. Exelon’s Representations and Warranties. Exelon hereby makes the following
representations and warranties to the Town:

(@) Exelon West Medway Il, LLC, is a Delaware limited liability company, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the state of Delaware and each has the full power
and authority to carry on its business as it is now being conducted.

(b) This PILOT constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of Exelon
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that the enforceability may be
limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting other enforcement of
creditors’ rights generally or by general equitable principles. Exelon has taken all necessary
action to authorize and approve the execution and delivery of this PILOT.

(©) To the best of Exelon’s knowledge, none of the documents or information
furnished by or on behalf of Exelon to the Town in connection with negotiation and execution of
this PILOT contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state any material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements contained herein or therein, in
the light of the circumstances in which they were made, not misleading.

(d) The person executing this PILOT on behalf of Exelon has the full power and
authority to bind it to each and every provision of this PILOT.

16. Town’s Representations and Warranties. The Town hereby makes the following
representations and warranties to Exelon:

€)) The Town is a municipal corporation and body politic of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts.

(b) Subject to satisfaction of the conditions precedent in Section 12, this PILOT
constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Town enforceable in accordance with its
terms. The Town will take all necessary action to authorize and approve the execution and
delivery of this PILOT.



(© The person executing this PILOT on behalf of the Town has the full power and
authority to bind it to each and every provision of this PILOT.

17. Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents or other communications
required or permitted to be given or made under the PILOT shall be in writing and addressed to
the following:

If to the Town:

Michael E. Boynton

Town Administrator

Medway Town Hall

155 Village Street

Medway, MA 02053

(508) 533-3200 (phone)
mboynton@townofmedway.org

with a copy to:

Barbara J. Saint Andre, Esq.
Petrini & Associates, P.C.
372 Union Avenue
Framingham, MA 01702
(508) 665-4310 (phone)
BSaintandre@petrinilaw.com

If to Exelon:

Jack Hughes

Exelon West Medway II, LLC
9 Summer Street

Medway, MA 02053
jack.hughes@exeloncorp.com
508-533-3919

with a copy to:

Todd D. Cutler, Esq.
Associate General Counsel
Exelon West Medway II, LLC
300 Exelon Way, Suite 340
Kennett Square, PA 19348
todd.cutler@exeloncorp.com
610.765.5602
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Notices hereunder shall be deemed properly served: (a) by hand delivery, on the day and at the
time on which delivered to the intended recipient at the address set forth in the PILOT; (b) if sent
by mail, on the third business day after the day on which deposited in the United States certified
or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the intended recipient
at its address set forth in the PILOT; or (c) if by Federal Express or other reputable express mail
service, on the next business day after delivery to such express mail service, addressed to the
intended recipient at its address set forth in the PILOT. Notices may also be transmitted by
electronic mail, provided that any notice transmitted solely by electronic mail which is not
confirmed as received by the receiving Party shall be followed up by personal delivery or
overnight delivery within forty-eight (48) hours. Either Party may change its address and contact
person for the purposes of this Section by giving notice thereof in the manner required herein.

18. Entire and Complete Agreement; Binding Effect. This PILOT, along with the
Exhibit(s) attached (or to be attached) hereto, and the HCA constitute the entire and complete
agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, exclusive of all prior
understandings, arrangements and commitments, all of which, whether oral or written, having
been merged herein, except for contemporaneous or subsequent written understandings,
arrangements, or commitments signed by the parties intended to be bound thereby. This PILOT
shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties to this PILOT and any successor or assignee
acquiring an interest hereunder.

19.  Survival. Termination of this PILOT for any reason shall not relieve Exelon of
any obligation accrued or accruing prior to such termination, including, but not limited to, the
obligations to make payments due on or before such termination as set forth in Sections 3 and 4.

20.  Other Documents. Each Party promises and agrees to execute and deliver any
instruments and to perform any acts which may be necessary or reasonably requested by the
other Party in order to give full effect to this PILOT.

21.  Governing Law. This PILOT and the rights and duties of the Parties hereunder
shall be governed by and shall be construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts without regard to principles of conflicts of law.

22. Dispute Resolution. Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this PILOT, the
dispute resolution procedures of this Section shall be the exclusive mechanism to resolve
disputes arising under this PILOT between the Town and Exelon. The Town and Exelon agree
to use their respective best efforts to resolve any dispute(s) that may arise regarding this PILOT.

Any dispute that arises under or with respect to this PILOT that cannot be resolved in the
daily management and implementation of this PILOT shall in the first instance be the subject of
informal negotiations between representatives of Exelon and the Town Administrator of
Medway, as the case may be, who shall use their respective best efforts to resolve such
dispute. The period for informal negotiations shall not exceed thirty (30) days from the time the
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dispute arises, unless it is modified by written agreement of the Parties involved in the
dispute. The dispute shall be considered to have arisen when one Party sends the other Party a
written notice of dispute.

In the event that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations under the
preceding paragraph of this Section, the Parties agree to submit the dispute to mediation. Within
fourteen (14) days following the expiration of the time period for informal negotiations, the
Parties shall propose and agree upon a neutral and otherwise qualified mediator. In the event
that the Parties fail to agree upon a mediator, the Parties shall request the American Arbitration
Association to appoint a mediator. The period for mediation shall commence upon the
appointment of the mediator and shall not exceed sixty (60) days, unless such time period is
modified by written agreement of the Parties. The decision to continue mediation shall be in the
sole discretion of each Party. The Parties will bear their own costs of the mediation.

In the event that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations or
mediation, venue for judicial enforcement shall be Norfolk County Superior Court, Dedham,
Massachusetts. Notwithstanding the foregoing, injunctive relief may be sought without resorting
to alternative dispute resolution to prevent irreparable harm that would be caused by a breach of
this PILOT. In any such judicial action, the “Prevailing Party” shall be entitled to payment from
the opposing party of its reasonable costs and fees, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees,
arising from the civil action. As used herein, the phrase “Prevailing Party” shall mean the party
who, in the reasonable discretion of the finder of fact, most substantially prevails in its claims or
defenses in the civil action.

23.  Confidentiality. The Parties understand that the Town is subject to, among other
laws, the Massachusetts Public Records Act, G.L. c. 66, 810 and G.L. c. 4, 87, cl. 26, pursuant to
which all documents and records made or received by the Town shall, absent an exemption or
law to the contrary, constitute a public record subject to disclosure. To the extent not
inconsistent with the Town’s duty set forth in the preceding sentence, if either Party or its
representatives provides to the other Party or its representatives confidential information,
including business plans, strategies, financial information, proprietary, patented, licensed,
copyrighted or trademarked information, and/or technical information regarding the design,
operation and maintenance of the facility or of a Party’s business (“Confidential Information”),
the receiving Party shall protect the Confidential Information from disclosure to third parties
with the same degree of care accorded its own confidential and proprietary information, but in
any event not less than a commercially reasonable degree of care, and refrain from using such
Confidential Information except in the negotiation and performance of this PILOT.

Notwithstanding any other provision herein, neither Party shall be required to hold confidential
any information that: (i) becomes publicly available other than through the receiving Party; (ii) is
required to be disclosed by a governmental authority, under all applicable laws or pursuant to a
validly issued subpoena, but a receiving Party subject to any such requirement shall promptly
notify the disclosing Party of such requirement; (iii) is independently developed by the receiving
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Party; or (iv) becomes available to the receiving Party without restriction from a third party
under no obligation of confidentiality.

24.  Amendments. This PILOT may only be amended or modified by a written
amendment to the PILOT signed by both Parties hereto.

25. Severability. If any section, phrase or portion of the PILOT is, for any reason,
held or adjudged to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction,
such section, phrase, or portion so adjudged will be deemed separate, severable and independent
and the remainder of the PILOT will be and remain in full force and effect and will not be
invalidated or rendered illegal or unenforceable or otherwise affected by such adjudication,
provided the basic purpose of the PILOT and the benefits to the Parties are not substantially
impaired.

26. Headings and Captions. The headings and captions appearing in this PILOT are
intended for reference only, and are not to be considered in construing the PILOT.

27.  Counterparts; Scanned Copies. This PILOT may be executed in counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same
instrument. The Parties agree that a scanned or electronically reproduced copy or image of this
PILOT bearing the signatures of the Parties hereto shall be deemed an original and may be
introduced or submitted in any action or proceeding as competent evidence of the execution,
terms and existence of this PILOT notwithstanding the failure or inability to produce or tender an
original, executed counterpart of this PILOT and without the requirement that the unavailability
of such original, executed counterpart of this PILOT first be proven.

28.  Waiver. No waiver by either Party hereto of any one or more defaults by the
other Party in the performance of any provision of the PILOT shall operate or be construed as a
waiver of any future default, whether of like or different character. No failure on the part of
either Party hereto to complain of any action or non-action on the part of the other Party, no
matter how long the same may continue, shall be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder
by the Party so failing. A waiver of any of the provisions of the PILOT shall only be effective if
made in writing and signed by the Party who is making such waiver.

29.  Joint Workproduct. This PILOT shall be considered the workproduct of both
Parties hereto, and, therefore, no rule of strict construction shall be applied against either Party.

30. Successors and Assigns. This PILOT shall be binding upon Exelon, the Town
and each of their affiliates, parents, successors and permitted assigns and inure to the benefit of
and be enforceable by Exelon, the Town and each of their affiliates, parents, successors and
permitted assigns.

31.  NoJoint Venture. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute either
Party a partner, agent or legal representative of the other Party or to create a joint venture,
partnership, agency or any relationship between the Parties. The obligations of the Parties are
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individual and not collective in nature.

32.  Further Assurances. From time to time and at any time at and after the execution
of the PILOT, each Party shall execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents and
assurances, reasonably requested by the other and shall take any other action consistent with the
terms of the PILOT that may be reasonably requested by the other for the purpose of effecting or
confirming any of the transactions contemplated by the PILOT.

33.  Good Faith. All rights, duties and obligations established by this PILOT shall be
exercised in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

34.  No Limitation of Regulatory Authority. The Parties acknowledge that nothing in
this PILOT shall be deemed to be an agreement by the Town to issue or cause the issuance of
any permit or approval, or to limit or otherwise affect the ability of the Town or the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts to fulfill its regulatory mandate or execute its regulatory
powers consistent with all applicable laws.

Executed under seal as of the date first above-written.

TOWN OF MEDWAY EX@&VF AY II, LLC
By: e

By: Napt: [/ Tpmes  CrOATY

Name: Tite: P OPernsrid ]

Title:

AS TO FORM:

, Town Counsel




EXHIBIT A
Description of New Facility

As used herein, the term “New Facility” shall include all of the following real and
personal property:

The New Facility will be located on approximately ten (10) acres (“Facility Site”) within
the Site consisting of Medway Assessors’ Map Parcel numbers 56-005, 66-010, 66-012
and 66-013. The Facility will include two (2) GE LMS100, simple-cycle peaking electric
combustion turbines (100 megawatts each) with a combined net nominal electrical output
of 200 megawatts (“MW?).

The New Facility will include the following major components and structures:

e Two (2) simple-cycle GE LMS100 combustion turbine generators (“CTGs”);

e Pollution control equipment including Selective Catalytic Reduction (“SCR”) and
carbon monoxide (CO) oxidation catalysts in modules downstream of each CTG;

e Two (2) 160-foot tall stacks;

e Noise walls including a 55-foot high noise surrounding the entire power island
including air cooled heat exchangers and a localized 20-foot property-line noise
barrier;

e Natural gas compressors;

e Aboveground storage tanks for ULSD, service/fire water, demineralized water
and aqueous ammonia, including unloading areas;

e Transformers and electrical interconnection facilities;

Combined building for control room, administrative and facility services,
maintenance and warehouse area, water treatment area, and associated systems;
450 kilowatt (“kW”’) emergency diesel generator;

147 kW emergency diesel fire pump engine;

Gas pipeline interconnection; and

Stormwater management system.

Please see the attached General Arrangement Plan depicting components of the New
Facility.

Natural Gas for the proposed New Facility will be delivered via an interconnection to the
existing Algonquin Gas Transmission Company (“AGT”) pipeline located to the
northwest of the Facility Site. The new pipeline will be permitted and constructed by
Exelon. Additionally, the New Facility will connect to the existing Eversource 115 kV
switchyard located on the Site in order to supply additional capacity in the SEMA/RI load
zone where capacity is needed.



AGENDA
ITEM #9

Approval — Inter-municipal Agreement with
Franklin for Its Use of Medway’s Council on
Aging Van

Associated backup materials attached:
e Contract

Proposed motion: | move that the Board authorize the Chairman to
execute the inter-municipal agreement with the town of Franklin for its use
of Medway's Council on Aging van.



Agreement Between
The Town of Franklin And The Town of Medway
For Use of Council on Aging Passenger Van

Whereas, the Towns of Franklin and Medway, collectively hereinafter referred to as the “Towns”,
desire to cooperate in the provision of a passenger van owned by the Town of Medway for use by
the Town of Franklin; and

Whereas, each of the Towns has been authorized to enter into this Agreement in accordance with
the provisions of G.L. c. 40, §84A.

Now therefore, the Towns, in mutual consideration of the covenants contained herein, agree as
follows:

1. The Town of Medway will allow the Town of Franklin to utilize its Council on Aging passenger van for
Town of Franklin Council on Aging transport activities for days and times mutually agreeable to both
Towns.

2. The Town of Franklin will be responsible for retrieving the vehicle from the Town of Medway and
returning it with a full fuel tank of gasoline and in clean condition.

3. The Town of Franklin will utilize its own staff for all transport provided in service to the Town of
Franklin community. The staff operating the vehicle must have a commercial driver’s license. The Town
of Franklin shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws, rules, regulations and orders
applicable to the use and operation of the vehicle for the purposes under this Agreement, such provisions
being incorporated herein by reference, and shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary licenses,
permits, and approvals required for such vehicle use.

4. The Town of Franklin agrees to name the Town of Medway as an additional insured under its General
Liability Policy and shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Town of Medway harmless to extent permitted
by law, from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, actions, causes of actions, costs and
expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising out of arising from the utilization of the passenger van for Town
of Franklin purposes and/or the Town of Franklin’s breach of this Agreement or the negligence or
misconduct of the Town of Franklin, or the Town of Franklin's agents or employees. The Towns agree that
the foregoing language is solely to define the parties’ respective rights and liabilities as to each other and
not to remove any statutory limitation on liability to third parties to which either party is entitled or
otherwise to expand said third party liability. The Town of Franklin also agrees to assume any costs
associated with automobile liability related to its utilization of this vehicle that would otherwise be borne
by the Town of Medway.

5. The Town of Medway shall assess and bill the Town of Franklin a fee on a monthly basis in the amount
of $100 per use of the passenger van. Payment shall be made to the Town of Medway within thirty days of



receipt of invoice.

6. The term of this agreement shall be from May 17, 2016 through May 16, 2019. The contract terms shall
remain in effect until either a new agreement is reached or the Town(s) terminate the agreement. This
agreement may be amended from time to time with written consent of both Towns.

9. Either Town, by vote of the Board of Selectmen or Town Council, may terminate this agreement upon
the provision of at least thirty (30) days prior written notification to the other Town. Such notice shall state
the termination date. Upon such termination, the Town of Medway shall prepare a full statement of
outstanding unpaid financial obligations pursuant to this agreement within thirty days after termination of
the agreement, and payment shall be made to the Town of Medway in accordance with this agreement.

10. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the Town’s submit to the jurisdiction of any of its appropriate courts
for the adjudication of disputes arising out of this Agreement. The Towns agree that if any court of
competent jurisdiction shall declare any provisions of this agreement to be unenforceable, the remaining
provisions hereof shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect.

11. This Agreement, including all documents incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the entire
integrated agreement between the parties with respect to the matters described. This Agreement supersedes
all prior agreements, negotiations and representations, either written or oral, and it shall not be modified or
amended except by a written document executed by the parties hereto.

Town of Franklin: Town of Medway:
By its Town Administrator, By its Board of Selectmen
duly authorized

Date: Date:




AGENDA
ITEM #10

Approval — One-Day Liquor License Requests
a. Rebecca LeMarbre — Thayer Homestead — May 21, 2016
b. Jesse & Gary Krist- Thayer Homestead — May 28 & 29, 2016

Associate backup materials attached:

e One-day license requests
e Police Chief's recommendations

Proposed Motion: | move that the Board approve one-day liquor

licenses for Rebecca LeMarbre and Jess & Gary Krist for their events at
the Thayer Homestead on May 21 & May 28-29, 2016, subject to Police
Chief's recommendations and proof of appropriate insurance coverage.



Town of Medway

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
155 Village Streel, Medway MA 02053
Ph. (308) 533-3264 Fax: (5U8) 3214899

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL ONE-DAY LIQUOR LICENSE

MGL ¢.138, §14

Appiication for the purpose of selling or dispensing the following beverages permitted by law. A
Section 12 license holder may not also be granted a Section 14 (one-day) license unless event is held at
a separate location. A person holding a Section 14 license cannot purchase alcoholic heverages from a
package store. Purchase must be made from a licensed wholesaler/importer, manufacturer, farmer-

winery/brewery, or special permit hoider,
For Profit Businesses are eligible for wine and malt license only.

Anplication must be submitted at least two weeks prior to event.

Fee: SO

All Alcohol Wine and Malt l/

- , ,
Event / cf'/?}/”,gi’r’/?)"z" Coper crr el s f?/ o

Event Location 72}6’(}/6"/ /% Jr7 5'7’2("5:'5 C}/
Event Date  Joi 7~ /??M/ RS, AT

EventHours 7 €& =/ ¢ <7z (No fater than 1:00 AM; Last call 12:30 AM)
7

, ')..'.f;w? "

) .
L e s T

-

Narne of Organization/Applicant

Attach non-profit certificate of exemption

Is event open to the general public? ¥ N_«

e
Estimated attendance i

-

Will there be an age restriction? ¥ 1" N
Minimum age allowed: '7’('/

R




How, where and by whom will ID’s be checked?

™ \ : o : AN Ny
J—’)}‘/ 7472 ///ff’/ L er S /Q:/ "’"‘}//Lj/ﬂ’?’/ f':/’/l /A for PV

Is there a charge for the beverages? Y N
Price structure:

Aleohol server(s)
Attach Proof of Alcohol Server Training

Lacgidlyy STl o Catbcred 778 )

Pravisions for Security, Detail Officer

Does the applicant have knowiledge of State liguor laws? Y @"’/ N

J— ’

£
. S T R
Experience /7 ST S 7 (5

The following may be required:
Police Dept. - Detail; Fire Dept. —~ Detail; Board of Health - Food Permit; Building Dept. — Tent Parmit

Date of Application j:/uf;//d"

Applicant’s Signature(m_/(//c'/c"/n"eff-’/‘»- LAlilace (

7 . . -
Applicant’s Name /7 /777, ary ./-/7‘/%,/;, G/

The Board of Selectmen’s Office will forward this application to the Police, Fire, and Building
Departments and the Board of Health for approval and recommendations.

Police Department
315 Viliage St Date

Fire Department
44 Milford St ' Date

Board of Health
Town Hall, 1% Ft Date

Building Department
Town Hall, 1% F Date




Metway Police Bepartment

35 Rillage Street Phone: 508-533-3212
feday, MA D053 FAX: 508-533-3216
Emergensy: 31
Allen M. Tingley
Chief of Holice
May 4, 2016

To; Michael Boynton
Town Administrator

From: Allen M. Tingley
Chief of Police

Re: One-Day Wine and Malt Request — Thayer House — LeMarbre-Green Wedding.

I have reviewed the application for the ®*° day wine and malt license for the LeMarbe/Green wedding scheduled
for May 21, 2016 at the Thayer House.

Lapprove of the issuing of the permits with the following condition.

There will be no on-street parking on either side of Oak Street or Mechanic Street. Additional parking may be
found at the Choate Park complex and in the rear parking lot off of Winthrop Street.

The serving of the beer and wine will comply with the standards set forth in the Town of Medway’s liquor policy
for a one day alcoholic beverage license. All alcohol served at the event will be purchased from a licensed
wholesale distributor as specified on the one-day liquor license application and required by the Alcohol Beverage
Control Commission. Alcohol service will be provided by TIPS certified bartenders from Off the Vine Catering.

Respectfuily Submitted
*__-_--‘
M <
Allen M. Tingley
Chief of Police



Town of Medway

BOARD OF SELECTMEN
155 Village Street, Medway MA 02053
Ph. (508) 533-3264 Fax: (508) 321-4899

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL ONE-DAY LIQUOR LICENSE
MGL c.138, §14

Application for the purpose of selling or dispensing the following beverages permitted by law. A
Section 12 license holder may not also be granted a Section 14 (one-day) license unless event is held
at a separate location. A person holding a Section 14 license cannot purchase alcoholic beverages
from a package store. Purchase must be made from a licensed wholesaler/importer, manufacturer,
farmer-winery/brewery, or special permit holder.

For Profit Businesses are eligible for wine and malt license only.

Application must be submitted at least two weeks prior to event.

Fee: SO

All Alcohol ,___| Wine and Malt ’Z]

Event ~K ! ';J‘ ///{/((11;’,1,,"\_;/2’ (:»'—)“”c‘{}}(,{ nNg < : S 0=y i'f’ ] © 1
/ \

Name of Organization/Applicant Crren "/,( s T

’ < ) / / . ) ~
Address ’% (T)(L(( Y 7 Mo Ao, \,(.\r "(/-( (OND9 Y

Non-Profit Organization Y D N

Attach non-profit certificate of exemption

’

A (] e I = o : y
Event Location ’1/.,1,14;/ Honweatead R Oale 5 g claey A4

P 4
Event Date 5 /2 ?f/[ é
Z /

i .
Event Hours (No later than 1:00 AM; Last call 12:30 AM) ’:3/7,,K = l(_)/ﬂ o
]
Is event open to the general public? Y N_Lz
Estimated attendance 4 O

Will there be an age restriction? Y D N

Minimum age allowed:




How, where and by whom will ID’s be checked?

y W

Is there a charge for the beverages? Y D N D

ce structure

Alcohol server(s)
+ 3 |

Attach Proof of Alcohol Server Training

Provisions for Security, Detail Officer o )

Does the applicant have knowledge of State liquor laws? ng N.,,D,-_

cxperience = ’ < #
The following may be required:
Police Dept. — Detail; Fire Dept. — Detail; Board of Health — Food Permit; Building Dept. — Tent Permit
Date of Application g A v ) &

/ Vi /) i
Applicant’s Signature _ Z— 77—

tmen’s Office will forward this application to the Police, Fire, and Building
he Board of Health for approval and recommendations.

Police MEAEES oL Lt - FRERENA T 3
315 Date
ST e ey ) S S e e e sl S

44 Milford St Date
Board of Health

Town Hall, 2™ Fl Date
Building Department

T(J n Hi‘l, l" Fl Date



Meday Police Departorent

313 Pillnge Street Hhoue: 5085333712
Meduay, MA 02053 FAX: 5085333216

Ewergeney: 51

Allen M. Tingley
{hief of Police

May 4, 2016

To: Michael Boynton
Town Administrator

From: Allen M. Tingley
Chief of Police

Re: One-Day Wine and Malt Request — Thayer House — Krist/Mitrano Wedding Reception

I have reviewed the application for the “** day wine and malt license for the Krist/Mitrano wedding reception
scheduled for May 28, 2016 at the Thayer House.

I approve of the issuing of the permits with the following condition.,

There will be no on-street parking on either side of Oak Street or Mechanic Street. Additional parking may be
found at the Choate Park complex and in the rear parking lot off of Winthrop Street.

The serving of the beer and wine will comply with the standards set forth in the Town of Medway’s liquor policy
for a one day alcoholic beverage license. All alcohol served at the event will be purchased from a licensed
wholesale distributor as specified on the one-day liquor license application and required by the Alcohol Beverage
Control Commission. Alcohol service will be provided by TIPS certified bartenders from Top Notch Bartenders
and Servers.

Respectfully Submitted

—
Qo Tl
Allen M. Tingley
Chief of Police



Town of Medway
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

135 Vitlage Street, Medway MA 02053
Ph. (308) 5533-3264 Fax: (308} 321-4899

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL ONE-DAY LIQUOR LICENSE :
MGL ¢, 138, §14 |
Application for the purpose of selling or dispensing the following beverages permitted by law. A
! Section 12 license holder may not also be granted a Section 14 {one-day) ficense unless event is held
I 3t a separate location. A person holding a Section 14 license cannot purchase alcoholic beverages
from a package store. Purchase must be made from a licensed wholesaler/importer, manufacturer,
farmer-winery/brewery, or special permit halder.

For Profit Businesses are eligible for wine and malt license only, g

Application must be submitted at least two weeks prior to event,

5 Fea: 50

All Alcohol __% Wine and Malt

S )
Event L tcdd e Seteohticn
H

-~ :
Name of Organization/Applicant ‘__\,ng‘*?" Yot j i:;‘wg m%

Address _ 3 Dok S+ Mg C’am&g Vi GBS

&

Non-Profit Organization Y N \;/
Attach non-profit certificate of exemption

P ;4
Event Location | N C{-:Jg.{ s {-?cwuzﬁ; f{ C({

Event Date 5[99 fg‘ L

7 ¥

Event Hours {No later than 1.00 AM; Last call 12:30 AM) Y prn Opr

is event open to the general public? Y N

Estimated attendance |5/

Wil there be an age restriction? Y N )<
Minimum age aliowed:




How, where and by whom will |D’s be checked? | ' ¢ f%’ it e iL}, Mg fﬁ“?(“ Ot

@’ e

Is there a charge for the beverages? Y N~
Price structure:

Alcohol server(s)
Attach Proof of Alcohol Server Training

»%%Top nctch Servers

Provisions for Security, Detail Officer

Does the applicant have knowledge of State fiquor laws? Y_4 N__Y/

Experience

The following may be required:
Police Dept. -~ Detail; Fire Dept. - Detail; Board of Health — Food Permit; Building Dept. —~ Tent Permit

pil i,
Date of Application “‘}/ @5 /] L

Applicant’s Signature

licant’s Name

The Board of Selectmen’s Office will forward this application to the Police, Fire, and Building
Departments and the Board of Health for approval and recommendations.

Police Department
315 Village St Date

Fire Department
44 Miiford 5t Date

Board of Heaith
Towr Hall, 277 F Date

Building Department
Town Hall, 177 F Date




alice Departnent
315 Willage Street Phone: 508-533-3212

Mehpay, AMA 02053 HAX: 508-533-3218
Emergeney: 311

Tedvay 3

Allen Bl Tingley
Chief of Holice

May 4, 2016

To: Michael Boynton
Town Administrator

From: Allen M. Tingley
Chief of Police

Re: One-Day Alcohol License Request — Thayer House — Krist Wedding Reception

I have reviewed the application for the ° day Alcohol license for the Krist wedding reception scheduled for May
29, 2016 at the Thayer House.

I approve of the issuing of the permits with the following condition,

There will be no on-street parking on either side of Oak Street or Mechanic Street. Additional parking may be
found at the Choate Park complex and in the rear parking lot off of Winthrop Street.

The serving of the beer and wine will comply with the standards set forth in the Town of Medway’s liquor policy
for a one day alcoholic beverage license. All alcohol served at the event will be purchased from a licensed
wholesale distributor as specified on the one-day liquor license application and required by the Alcohol Beverage
Control Commission. Alcohol service will be provided by TIPS certified bartenders from Top Notch Bartenders
and Servers.

Respectfully Submitted

Cad2. ()
Allen M. Tingley
Chief of Police



AGENDA
ITEM #11

Approval -— CF Cycle for Life Ride - October 1,
2016

Associated backup materials attached:

e Related Documents
e Police Chief's Recommendations

Proposed Motion: | move that the Board approve the request to
allow cyclists to travel through Medway for the CF Cycle for Life Ride on
October 1, 2016 subject to the Police Chief's recommendations.



CYSTIC FIBROSIS
FOUNDATION

ADDING TOMORROWS

May 3, 2016

Board of Selectmen

Ms. Karen Kisty

Town of Medway Town Hall
155 Village Street

Medway, MA 2053

RE: Annual CF Cycle for Life Bicycle Tour, October 1, 2016
Dear Karen:

| am writing to request your approval for the 2016 CF Cycle for Life to travel through the town of
Medway. The event is a single day charity bicycle ride to benefit the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation. Over
the past eighteen years, more than $1.8 million have been raised by dedicated CF volunteers and
participahts.l

This year's ride is scheduled for Saturday, October 1, 2016. We have changed the format of theride to a
double start, so 125 65 mile riders will leave Holliston at 8:30 am traveling through various towns and
back. 225 30/12 mile riders will leave Holliston at 10:00 am. The event starts and finishes at the Fatima
Shrine on Summer Street in Holliston. We offer three routes, 12 30 and 65 miles. All cue sheets are
enclosed.

As always, our priority is making the ride as safe as possible by keeping to side roads when practical and
providing support to all riders. We anticipate having 350 riders again this year.

Cystic Fibrosis (CF) is a genetic disease that affects over 30,000 children and young adults each year and
is the most common life-threatening genetic disease in the United States today. Funds raised by riders
and sponsors support the efforts of the talented scientists who are racing towards a cure for CF, and
who will assure that children and adults fighting CF will lead long and healthy lives,

if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation in
Natick at (800) 966-0444 or email us at twaite@cff.crg. Thank you for your past support and your
willingness to help this year.

Smcerely,

Mo T gcw/

Theresa Waite
Senior Director of Development

MASSACHUSETTS/RHODE ISLAND CHAPTER 220 NORTH MAIN STREET T: 508.655.6000 W: HITP/MASS-RLCF.ORG
SUITE 104 T 800.966.0444 E: MASS-RI@CF.ORG

NATICK, MA 01760 F: B08.653.6942
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12 MILE ROUTE - (JENNA LOOP) @%YCLE”

CF Cycle for Life Saturday October 1, 2016 FOR LIFE

CYSTIC FIBROSIS FOUNDATION

LLQ, Total Dir Cue = S .
MA-126 S/ Summer Street mto Medway

0 0 R

0.8 0.8 | L |Lovering Street

0.9 1.7 L | Winthrop Street

0.7 2.4 R | Hill Street into Holliston

0.9 3.3 'L | Norfolk Street

1.4 4.7 BR | Franklin Street

0.2 4.9 R | Central Street. Stay on Central Street bearing to the
right. (avoiding Fiske Street)

0.9 5.8 L | MANDATORY REST STOP (Lutheran Church, 600
Central Street, Holliston)
*Please check in with volunteers*

.| From Rest Stop:

1.1 6.9 R | Bullard Lane '

0.6 7.5 R | Orchard Street (becomes Goulding Street in Holliston)

1.5 9.0 L | Norfolk Street

0.2 9.2 R | Hill Street into Medway

0.9 10.1 L | Winthrop Street

1.0 11.1 R | Partridge Street

0.1 11.2 | BL | Partridge Street

0.1 11.3 R | Lovering Street

0.6 11.9 R | MA-126 N/ Summer Street into Holliston

0.9 12.8 L | FINISH LINE at Fatima Shrine

*Please check in with volunteers*

Rules of the Road:
Always ride single file. Although we have help from the local police deta:ls at
certain locations, they are NOT closing any roads.
Communicate with other riders when passing.
Use hand signals where possible and never assume a motorist can see you
Remember, safety first!
If you need assistance, please wait at roadside and ﬂag down a sagwagon.
Don't be shy about asking for help. Dial 911 in an Emergency.

Dial 617-592-4392 if you get off the route and cannot find your way back.
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30 MILE ROUTE — (HAYLEE LOOP) FOR LIFE

CF Cycle for Life Saturday October 1, 2016 CYSTIC FIBROSIS FOUNDATION
Total D . T TR

0 0 R | MA-126 S/ Summer Street into Medway

0.8 0.8 L Lovering Street

0.9 1.7 L Winthrop Street

0.7 2.4 R | Hill Street into Holliston

0.9 3.3 L Norfolk Street

14 4.7 BR | Franklin Street

0.2 4.9 R | Central Street

0.2 5.1 BL | Fiske Street (becomes Mill Street in Sherborn)

3.1 8.2 BR | Woodland Street

0.2 8.4 BR | Continue on Woodland Street

0.3 8.7 L Woodland Street into Sherborn

500ft | 8.7 S | Cross S. Main Street (MA-27) onto Forest Street

0.8 9.5 BL | Lake Street .

0.5 10.0 MANDATORY REST STOP (Farm Pond, 201 Lake St,
Sherborn) *Please check in with volunteers*

0.7 10.7 | S | Cross Farm Road; continuing on Lake Street

0.9 11.8 | R | MA-16 E/ Eliot Street into Natick

2.8 146 |R | Mill Lane (very small side road beside S. Natick dam)

300ft | 14.6 | R | Pleasant Street - Cross Bridge

0.2 14.8 | R | Glen Street into Dover

2.4 17.2 | R | Farm Street

1.3 18.5 | BR | Junction Street (Junction St becomes Harding St in Medfield)

1.1 19.6 | R | Hospital Road -

1.1 20.7 R | MA-27 N/ South Main Street

0.7 214 | L MA-115 S/ Bullard Street (becomes Orchard Street in Millis)

1.9 23.3 | BR | Stay on Orchard Street (leaving MA-115)

300ft |23.3 | S | Cross Middlesex Street, continue on Orchard Street

1.3 246 |S | OPTIONAL REST STOP (Holliston Senior Center, 150
Goulding St, Holliston))

1.2 258 L Norfolk Street

0.2 26.0 | R | Hill Street into Medway

0.5 265 |L | Winthrop Street

1.0 27.5 | R | Partridge Street

0.1 27.6 | BL | Partridge Street

0.1 27.7 | R | Lovering Street

0.6 28.3 | R | MA-126 N/ Summer Street into Holliston

0.9 202 |L FINISH LINE at Fatima Shrine
*Please check in with volunteers*




®
65 MILE ROUTE @?'CYCLE”

| __C'f__Cycle_f_or Life Saturday October 1, 2016 - FOR LlFE

_ ‘cvsn_c FIBROSIS FOUNDATION

MA-126 S/ Summer Street into Medway

D
0 0 R
0.8 0.8 L Lovering Street
0.9 1.7 L | Winthrop Street
07 124 R | Hill Street into Holliston
0.9 3.3 L Norfolk Street
1.4 47 BR | Franklin Street
0.2 4.9 R | Central Street
0.2 5.1 BL | Fiske Street (becomes Mill Street in Sherborn)
3.1 8.2 BR | Woodland Street
0.2 8.4 BR | Continue on Woodland Street
0.3 8.7 L | Woodiand Street into Sherborn
5001t | 8.7 S | Cross S. Main Street (Rt. 27) onto Forest Street
0.8 9.5 BL | Lake Street
0.5 10.0 OPTIONAL REST STOP (Farm Pond, 201 Lake St,
Sherborn)
0.7 10.7 | S | Cross Farm Road; continuing on Lake Street
0.9 11.8 | R | MA-16 E/ Eliot Street into Natick - '
2.8 14.6 | R | Mill Lane (very small side road beside S. Natick dam)
300ft |14.6 | R | Pleasant Street - cross bridge
0.2 14.8 | R | Glen Street into Dover
2.4 17.2 | R | Farm Street
1.3 18.5 | BR | Junction Street (Junction St becomes Harding St in Medfield)
1.1 19.6 | R | Hospital Road
1.1 20.7 |R | MA-27 N/ South Main Sireet
0.7 214 | L MA-115 S/ Bullard Street (becomes Orchard Street in Millis)
1.9 23.3 | BR | Stay on Orchard Street (leaving Rte 115)
300ft 23.3 |S | Cross Middlesex Street, continue on Orchard Street
1.3 246 | S MANDATORY REST STOP (Holliston Senior Center, 150
Goulding St, Holliston) *Check in with volunteers*
1.2 258 | L Norfolk Street
0.2 26.0 R | Hill Street into Medway
0.5 26.5 | L | Winthrop Street
1.6 28.1 | R | Adams Street
1.0 281 |L MA-126 S/ Summer Street
1.0 30.1 | R | MA-109 W/ Milford Street : e
1.6 31.7 | R | Clark Street (turns into South Street in Holliston) -
1.3 33.0 |L Rockland Street
0.3 33.3 |S | Cross MA-16 onto Adams Street
0.0 33.3 |R | Adams Street
1.9 352 |L Hanlon Road (turns into College St in Hopkinton)




0.9 36.1 | R | MA-85 N/Hayden Rowe Street

0.3 36.4 OPTIONAL REST STOP (Cornell's Pub, 229 Hayden Rowe
Street, Hopkinton)

0.1 365 |L Granite Street

0.8 37.3 | R | Lumber Street 3

2.1 394 'S Cross West Main Street; contmue on Lumber Street ExtenSIon

200ft 1394 |R | Elm Street

0.7 401 |L MA-135 W/Wood Street

2.2 423 |R Fruit Street

0.3 426 | BR | Continue on Fruit Street

24 1450 |R | Flanders Road (becomes Southville Rd, then Cordaville Rd)

2.9 479 (R Howe Street

0.7 486 | L Cross Street

0.8 494 | R | Stayon Cross Street

0.9 50.3 |R | MA-135 W/East Main Street

0.1 504 L Clinton Street

0.4 50.8 MANDATORY REST STOP (Legacy Farms, Clinton St.)
*Check in with volunteers®

1.1 51.9 | BR | Stay on Clinton Street (becomes Mill Street in Holliston)

1.7 53.6 | R | Prentice Street (becomes Ash Street in Hopkinton)

1.7 55.3 'L | South Mill Street (becomes Wilson Street in Holliston)

1.3 566 |L Hanlon Street

0.6 572 |R Marshall Street

0.7 57.9 | BL | Courtland Street _

0.8 587 |S Cross MA-16 onto South Street

0.7 594 |L Fisher Street

0.2 596 |L Stay on Fisher Street into Medway

1.6 612 |L MA-109 E/ Milford Street

0.6 61.8 | L MA-126 N/ Summer Street into Holliston

2.4 642 |L FINISH LINE (FATIMA SHRINE) *Check in with volunteers®

Rules of the Road:

Always ride single e file. Although we have help from the local police details at
certain locations, they are NOT closing any ¢ roads.

‘Communicate with other riders when passing.
Use hand signals where possible and never assume a motorist can see you.

 Remember, safety first!

If you need assistance, please wait at roadside and flag down a sagwagon.
Don't be shy about asking for help. Dial 911 in an Emergency.

Dial 617-592-4392 if you get off the route and cannot find your way back.




Metivay Police Department

315 Hillage Sivest Phane: 508-533-3212
Mediuay, MA p2053 HAX: ROS-533-3216

Emergenry:; 41

| Allen B Tingley
Ehief of Police

May 11, 2016
| To: Michael Boynton
- Town Administrator

~From: Allen M. Tingley
' Chief of Police

"Re: CF Cycle for Life

- T have reviewed the bicycle route, mapped out for the CF Cycle for Life Bicycle Ride, scheduled for October 1,
2016. 1 would approve of the issuing of the permit with the stipulation that two detail officers be hired by the
organization, to assure the safety of the riders and the movement of traffic during the bicycle ride.

.Respectfully Submitted,
= L.

Allen M. Tingiey
-Chief of Police



AGENDA
ITEM #12

Action Items from Previous Meeting

Associated backup materials attached:
e Action Items List



DATE ACTION ITEMS BOS WHO COMPLETED
1 7/6/2010 Street acceptance progress S. Affleck-Childs Ongoing
2 9/20/2010 Route 109 Project DPS Ongoing
Cable license renewals ; Mtg of Cable Advisory Com;
3 2/3/2014 Ascertainment Process TA/CAC Ongoing
4 7/28/2014 DPS Facility Building Project DPS/TA/Committee  On hold
5 2/28/2015 Database of searchable minutes/Update Town Website TA/IS Ongoing
6 | 10/13/2015 Land Acceptances - BOS v ConCom BOS/ PEBD Pending
7 4/4/2016 Recreational Facility Improvements BOS ATM; Ongoing

5/3/16




AGENDA
ITEM #13

Approval of Warrants

Warrants to be provided at meeting



AGENDA
ITEM #14



AGENDA
ITEM #15
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